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Everybody has Demons

FADE IN:

EXT. AT THE FRONT OF THE HOUSE ON THE PORCH ON A ROCKING
CHAIR - MORNING

Aisha sits in the rocking chair rocking back and forth on
nice sunny day in Florida you see her for a moment and then
you see things that she discusses as she tells the story
about herself and her family the story and the events that
lead to her current situation.  In a somewhat country voice
you hear her speak.

AISHA (V.O.)
I do not know where to start my name
is Aisha Johnson my daddy name is
Rayvon Johnson they call him Big Ray
he is a big name feared by many,
they say he is mean but he is nice
to me.  I remember the first time I
saw him cry it broke my heart, not
to mention it was at my mommas funeral
she died when I was only 20 years
old.

INT. INSIDE THE CHURCH IN NEW YORK AT HER MOTHER'S FUNERAL -
AFTERNOON

Big Ray was very emotional and was crying as they pulled him
away from the casket of his deceased wife Leona.

BIG RAY
Oh Leona how could you leave us so
soon baby, what are we going to do
without you?

AISHA (V.O.)
The funeral was very emotional and was very
crowded there was standing room only, I think the
church was too small.  The funny thing is that I
think my daddy felt guilt, because he often would
beat my momma.  Maybe this had something to
do with the decisions I made in life.  Then there is
my little brother Rayvon, I call him little but he is
bigger than me, but I am older than him by three
years and he will always be my little brother.  My
momma got sick when he was a little boy and
that was the last time I saw him cry, he did not
even cry at the funeral, he just stood there looking
mad pouncing his fist and griding his teeth, him
and Big Ray never really got along.

Note
Act 1 The�Chaotic�Family
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INT. INSIDE THE CHURCH IN NEW YORK AT HER MOTHER'S FUNERAL -
AFTERNOON

Rayvon mumbling to himself next to his sister Aisha.

RAYVON
One day Big Ray, one day I am going
to be bigger and stronger than you,
you killed my momma you killed my
momma.

AISHA (V.O.)
Rayvon always blamed daddy for mommas
death, but my momma had high blood
pressure stayed out in the streets
late hours of the day gambling and
drinking and I heard in fact I caught
her cheating on my daddy.  That does
not give him a reason to beat on her
as he did, but she mistreated daddy
and a man has pride and Big Ray was
a very proud man.  I think they only
stayed together because of us and
they were old fashion and believed
until death they should remain
together.

INT. ON THE AMTRAK TRAIN HEADED TO FLORIDA - NIGHT

Aisha riding on the train reading a book about the history
of the black man in America.  You hear the train rumbling
down the tracks and you hear the train horn blowing.

EXT. AT THE TRAIN STATION IN A SEBRING, FLORIDA - AFTERNOON

GRANDMA SUGAR
Come her baby give your grandmamma
some sugar.  Everything is going to
be alright Grandma Sugar is going to
take care of her baby.  You remember
your aunty Sister Peace?  She works
at the college you will be attending

SISTER PEACE
Come here girl, peace and love, give
your aunt a hug.  Girl you got big
and you are so pretty, you must have
gotten that from you aunt.  You are
going to be alright baby.

AISHA (V.O.)
They say my grandmamma was an Native
American, but my brother Rayvon said he heard
her in a slip of the tongue say she was from Sicily

(MORE)
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AISHA (V.O.) (CONT'D)
and when he said something to her about it asking
why she claims to be Indian, she said it is none
of their damn business, which was strange coming
from a pillar of a church.  She had my daddy and
my uncle Shotgun as they call him for killing a
man while he was young and years later she had
Aunt Peace, who was not much older than me
she is just 15 years my senior not long after she
was born they say granddaddy died.  And this is
where my story begins.

INT. AISHA IN BED IN HER BEDROOM - MORNING -

Shaking Aisha and tapping on her while in bed.

SISTER PEACE
Wake up girl, wake up it is time for
you to go and register for the new
semester so you can get the classes
of your choice.

Half awake Aisha looks at her alarm clock and notice it is
just 5 am.

AISHA
Aunty it is only 5 am, it is too
early go away.

SISTER PEACE
Look girl you do not think your aunt
Peace keeps this figure laying in
the bed all day do ya?  We have to
do 2 miles every morning, now get
your lazy behind up.

Now pulling Aisha out of the bed, Aisha is not used to getting
up in the morning to exercise.

AISHA
Please aunt Peace let me sleep. 
Alright!

Aisha gets out of bed and puts on sweat suit Aunt Peace
purchased for her the day before.

SISTER PEACE
Does it fit?

AISHA
Yes aunty!

SISTER PEACE
Good lets go?
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She said lets go but like a question.

AISHA
Well can I at least brush my teeth.

SISTER PEACE
I hope so we have a lot of catching
up to do and I need not morning
breath.

They go tracking around town, Avon Park, Florida is small
town in population but a wide area, however the City limits
are not that wide, but people like Sister Peace lives outside
the City limits and commutes to town.  The University is
right outside the city limits as they run they talk and you
can see Sister Peace pointing at places and telling her about
the town.

AISHA
What is that a club Aunt Peace?

SISTER PEACE
Oh no you stay away from that place,
it is the dumps a man just got killed
in there last week.  I do not know
why they let that place operate, it
is nothing but thugs, drugs and guns.

AISHA
Oh really?

Aisha was thinking to herself, the audience hears her thinking
to herself, "Maybe there is some action in Avon Park after
all."  She had no intentions of taking her aunt's advice,
but planned to do the very opposite.

SISTER PEACE
Your going to need a car to go to
the  college and get around.

AISHA
I do not known how to drive, I cannot
afford a car!

SISTER PEACE
Your aunty got plenty of money,

  Listen to your aunt, peace and
love, let me handle things for you.

AISHA
I still cannot drive and school starts
soon.
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SISTER PEACE
I am sorry about your momma.  I will
have you driving in no time.

INT. IN AN APARTMENT IN QUEENS, NEW YORK - EVENING

Rayvon joined the Army he was 18 years old, he kept this to
himself not even telling his friends.  He had his high school
diploma and was finally old enough to move out from under
Big Ray whom he was angry with because he felt Big Ray
contributed to his mother's death.

RAYVON
Daddy I have something to tell you,
sit down man.

BIG RAY
What's wrong boy?

RAYVON
Na man it is all right in fact, just
listen.

BIG RAY
Now you ain't funny boy like your
first cousin?

RAYVON
Oh Jokes!  Stop kidding daddy this
is serious business!

Holding his heart like he was having a heart attack in a
joking manner he says.

BIG RAY
Oh no my boy sell drugs, what are
you cuz or bloods?

RAYVON
Your starting to worry me, let me
break the news to you.  Are you ready?

BIG RAY
Alright all jokes aside, what is it
boy?

RAYVON
I-joined-the-Army.  I got it out.

BIG RAY
No!  No!  Are you serious man?  I
thought you was going to college
like Aisha.  I know you blame me for
your mamma boy but times are dangerous
now.
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RAYVON
I am not scared, more black young
men; man the streets are more
dangerous.

BIG RAY
Those damn recruiters, I bet they
fed you that bullshit, those boys
are going to go to war.  Didn't you
see what happened to the World Trade
Center?  But I am tired of fighting
with you man, you are a man now you
are emancipated, I cannot protect
you anymore you are on your own as a
military man.

RAYVON
Yea I am a man now, by the way I
leave next week.

BIG RAY
Next week?  Damn!  Anymore surprises? 
I am about to lose my boy in a week.

RAYVON
I am just going to the Army!

BIG RAY
Yea but you will be a man.

In a daze Rayvon realized he reached manhood the fast way
and repeats his dad.

RAYVON
I am a man?

INT. AISHA IN BED IN HER BEDROOM - NIGHT

Aisha and Rayvon talks on the phone long distance about his
decisions and conversation with his father.

AISHA
 Why you had to join the Army of all branches of
the military, they send the Negroes straight to the
front line.

RAYVON
There you go with you black talk.

AISHA
Why you did not join the Air Force
or something like the Navy.
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RAYVON
The Army offered me the best deal
and the best job, I shopped this out
sister Aisha.

AISHA
Oh well I hope you do not get yourself
killed.

RAYVON
Don't tell grandma, but I am going
to surprise her after I finish
training I am coming to Florida to
see you'll

Aisha act like she was going to tell and yelled out.

AISHA
Grandma!

She hesitated for a moment and said.

AISHA (CONT'D)
Rayvon said hi!

RAYVON
You had me nervous for a moment.

AISHA
You know your secrets are safe with
me?

RAYVON
Yea right!  Daddy said this is long
distance I have to get off the phone.

AISHA
Well its been 30 minutes Rayvon. 
Good luck boy.

RAYVON
I am a man, I have been emancipated. 
Since you have all the sense explain
that one to me.

AISHA
That's right you will be emancipated, 
because now the Army is your daddy. 
If daddy tells you to do something
and the army tells you something
else, you have to follow the orders
you receive by the Army, that is why
you have to be emancipated.
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RAYVON
And that is called being a man?

AISHA
I am going to tell you something and
keep it to yourself.  Are you ready
for the truth?

RAYVON
Yes.

AISHA
The meaning of man is one who pledges
to an allegiance.  By joining that
gang called Department of Defense,
you became a man by American Law and
the laws of secret orders. 
Understood?

RAYVON
Understood!

AISHA
Good luck Man!

RAYVON
How is it down there?

AISHA
For 30 minutes you talked about the
Army, Goodbye.

Aisha hangs up and says to her grandmother.

AISHA (CONT'D)
Grandma the boy, excuse me man can
talk.  I hope he makes it in the
Army.

GRANDMA SUGAR
Oh lord my boy joined the Army.

AISHA
He will be alright I feel it in my
bones.

GRANDMA SUGAR
You was always a spiritual girl, the
Lord is in your favor.

AISHA
I don't know grandma, he took my
momma away.
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GRANDMA SUGAR
Don't be like Rayvon and be angry
with the Lord.  He blames his daddy
but he really believes the Lord has
forsaken him.  Don't be angry with
the Lord no matter how hard things
get, love the Lord with all your
heart.

AISHA
Thank you grandma, I needed that.

INT. AT THE THUG NIGHTCLUB - NIGHT

Aisha goes to the night club her aunt Sister Peace told her
to never go to, but she was always to some degree rebellious. 
While sitting at the bar drinking coke and young man about 3
years her senior approaches her.

JAKE
Whatever she is drinking give her as
many as she wants tonight.  Her drinks
are on Jake.

BARTENDER
That will be cokes on the house.

JAKE
Rum and coke?

BARTENDER
No big spender like I said coke, why
don't you find another girl she is
not your type, in fact I do not think
she belongs here, I should put her
out.

AISHA
Let me be honest with you Jake is
your name?  I just came to get my
dance on, you wanna dance with me? 
I do not know what you do for a living
but I can pay for my sodas.

JAKE
Sure you right.  Let's get our dance
on.

They danced all night and at the end of the night jake
starting his games.

JAKE (CONT'D)
That was the most fun I had in a
long time.  So how do you plan to
get home you need a ride?



10.

AISHA
I have a car, thanks but no thanks!

JAKE
Than can you give me a ride?

AISHA
Didn't you just offer me a ride home,
so you have your own car right?

JAKE
Don't make sense to burn two gas
tanks for one trip

AISHA
I am not going home with you man,
what kind of woman do you think I
am?  Later!

JAKE
If you say so.

AISHA
And I didn't mean it like that, you
must really think you are a thug. 
You'll country boys are trips.

JAKE
Later?  I mean it like that.

AISHA
Whatever!

INT. IN THE MAIN HOUSE IN AVON PARK FLORIDA - EVENING

Rayvon finished basic training and AIT and was set to go to
his duty station at Fort Steward Georgia with the 3rd Infantry
Division a highly honored Division, but a high percentage of
them serve in the Middle East compared to other units so
there was a good chance Rayvon would serve in the war against
terrorism in response to the World Trade Attacks.  He call
his grandmother to inform her he was about to visit her in
Florida for a couple of weeks before going to Georgia.  The
phone rings and Grandma Sugar answers the phone.

GRANDMA SUGAR
Hello, Hello, this is Mother Sugar
speaking, who is calling and how can
I help you?

RAYVON
Grandma it is Rayvon, how is everyone
doing?
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GRANDMA SUGAR
Boy how are you doing we have not
heard from you in a three or four
weeks.

RAYVON
I am in the Army grandma.

GRANDMA SUGAR
I do no care if you in the Army boy,
I do not care where you are in the
world you stay in touch with your
family.

RAYVON
I love you Grandma, and I am sorry
if I caused you'll to worry, but I
was under a lot of pressure, I did
not know if I was going to make it.

GRANDMA SUGAR
That is even more reason to call, we
are family and our job is to help
each other through hard times, we
are not family just in good times.

RAYVON
I am sorry grandma, but I am going
to Florida for two weeks to see you
and everybody in town, it has been
years since I been down there.

GRANDMA SUGAR
Rayvon you coming to see your grandma
Sugar?

RAYVON
Yes Grandma and how is Aisha and
aunty Peace?

GRANDMA SUGAR
They are fine boy they are fine, Aisha goes to the
college my baby teaches at, they get up and run
together everyday, they have become close,
they're like sister's, Peace found it in her heart to
buy Aisha a car.

RAYVON
Aisha has her own ride now.

GRANDMA SUGAR
She got a nice little car, it is
brand new, but I do not like the way
she drives, she is learning.
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RAYVON
Well I will see you in a couple of
days.

Other soldiers wants to use the phone it is a phone line,
they were not allowed cell phones in training.  They all
started saying come on Rayvon we have to make our calls too.

RAYVON (CONT'D)
Grandma I have to get off the phone,
the other guys have to call home.  I
love you and will see you soon. 
Give my love to Aunt Peace and Aisha
and tell daddy I will be headed to
Avon Park and cannot make it to New
York  this trip.

GRANDMA SUGAR
Goodbye baby and we will be happy to
receive you.  Thank you Jesus!

They hang up the phone.  The other guys were so in a rush to
get on the phone they almost knock Rayvon down.  Speaking to
the next person on the phone line.

RAYVON
Damn you gonna knock me over?

Rayvon gets on the Commercial Jet at Fort Sill, Oklahoma
headed to Orlando International Airport in Florida, he is in
dress greens, about 3 hours before he boarded the Plane he
called Grandma Sugar again to let her know he was on his way 
and he gave them the boarding information being Aisha and
Sister Peace, who was to meet him at the airport.

Grandma Sugar was running all over town getting all the little
things to make Rayvon's visit special, knowing it might be a
while before they see him again and it was years since they
saw him.  She was telling everyone about her baby Rayvon a
soldier boy was coming home to see his grandma.

GRANDMA SUGAR
Jerry get those sheets right there.

Jerry is one of two of Sister Peace children, she has a son
and a daughter and they call her husband Rev.  Dr. Love the
head of the Love Ministries, which happens to actually be
his last name.

JERRY
Grandma you ain't never went through
all this for me.

GRANDMA SUGAR
You don't think I love you?
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JERRY
I am sorry Grandma, I did not mean
that, what color?

GRANDMA SUGAR
His favorite color was always blue,
get the blue sheets.

Jerry was about 13 years old in middle school and a church
goer all of his life and very mannerly.

JERRY
I will never join the Army they are
not going to get me killed, I am
going to college.

GRANDMA SUGAR
You think my baby going to die?

JERRY
No grandma, I did not mean it like
that, but there is a war about to
start and there is no draft, why in
the world would someone volunteer to
go in the military?

GRANDMA SUGAR
Oh Lord, Oh Lord I think this is the
big one.

JERRY
Grandma what is wrong, are you all
right?

GRANDMA SUGAR
Oh Lord, I think this is the big
one.

Grandma sugar was having a heart attack, from over excitement, 
plus she was already sick.  She falls down in WalMart and
passes out.  Jerry starts shaking her as he panicked, crying
out.

JERRY
Grandma, Grandma wake up, wake up
grandma.

STORE MANAGER
Call 9/11, someone call 9/11

Jerry calls 9/11 and the store manager gives her CPR until
the Emergency Medical Technicians arrives.
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INT. CAR ON THE WAY TO AIRPORT - AFTERNOON

Sister Peace cell phone rings it is sitting on the seat
between her and Aisha.

SISTER PEACE
Aisha who is that?

AISHA
It is cousin Jerry.

SISTER PEACE
I wonder what he wants, between Jerry
and his sister Patricia I just do
not know.

AISHA
Well they are your children

SISTER PEACE
What you waiting on answer that phone.

AISHA
Jerry hi cousin, it's Aisha, what's
up?

JERRY
It is grandma.  I do not know nah
nah.

AISHA
What wrong man, speak clearly what's
up?

JERRY
I think grandma is dead.

AISHA
Do not play with me boy, now what is
wrong, what's up.

JERRY
No jokes she had a heart attack in Walmart fell
out and they could not revive her, they pronounce
her dead upon arrival at the hospital.  I swear I am
not lying.

Aisha gets excited and yelled out.

AISHA
Grandma is dead Jerry?

SISTER PEACE
Momma is dead?
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Sister peace loses control of the car for a moment and almost
gets into a high speed car accident, as she pull over to the
side she starts saying.

SISTER PEACE (CONT'D)
Oh Lord I can't breath, no this cannot
be!

She pulls over and takes the phone from Aisha and confirms
her mother just died.

SISTER PEACE (CONT'D)
Put a doctor on the phone.

She talks to the doctor and he explained to her what happened. 
She gets back on the road to pickup Rayvon with tears running
down her eyes and Aisha cries also.

INT. AT SISTER PEACE HOUSE THEY HAVE A FAMILY DINNER THE
NIGHT BEFORE THE FUNERAL - EVENING

PATRICIA
Momma how did Grandma get all those
things she left behind.

SISTER PEACE
Well Big Ray Momma left you the family
home and the side house, what you
going to do?  I can look after Aisha.

AISHA
I do not want to be a burden to
anyone, I will just get a job and
find me a place, maybe go back to
New York City.

BIG RAY
No I am coming back home and Aisha you gonna
get that degree, if it is the last thing you do.  I will
live off of my annuity money, my job is about to
move to Ohio anyway, that is why I sent  Aisha
down her in the first place, but I have to come
home now.

RAYVON
It was my fault I should not have
surprised her.

SISTER PEACE
No momma was sick for a while now,
don't you feel guilty keep your focus
in the Army.  I hear your unit sends
a lot of men to the Middle East, you
have to be focused and make it back
to us Rayvon.
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SHOTGUN
Well we will all be together soon
the real estate man said momma is
building me a house on that property
across town.  I can retire in two
years, he said it is paid for, I
just have to tell them when to do
the construction and with the
insurance money we will be able to
settle in with my retirement pay
from transit.

AISHA
You'll are dividing the prey and she
ain't even buried yet.

SISTER PEACE
She is right, let us pray and eat,
bury momma and then discuss the future
plans.

REV. DR. LOVE
Your momma did in death what she
could not do in life, she has brought
her children back together.  I am
going to miss that woman, if it was
not for her, this ministry would
have never been, she was truly the
pillar of this church.

SISTER PEACE
Lead of into prayer.

Rev.  Dr. Love leads them into prayer and they all say
together.

THE FAMILY
Amen!

They eat dinner passes the peas and has a family dinner.

EXT. A THE GRAVE YARD - AFTERNOON

Friends and family gather they pray and tell everyone to
disperse after they lower her casket into the ground.  Sister
Peace took it the hardest and could not stop crying.  Rayvon
was again apathetic as he was since his mother had a stroke
that led to her death, dress in his Army Uniform.  Aisha
also cried.

INT. AT THE COLLEGE GRADUATION - AFTERNOON - TWO YEARS LATER

The graduation was held in a huge auditorium on the campus, it was packed and
the students was only allowed to invite two family members or friends.
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Aunt Peace was a part of the faculty Aisha invited her father Big Ray and her
cousin Patricia who was 11 years old at the time.  The graduates were separated
my categories and Aisha was in the Professional section and each section was
divided by grade point average, Aisha was towards the front of the class, they called
two or three names as they received their diploma, then they called Aisha.

SCHOOL FACULITY
Aisha Johnson Bachelor of Science
Degree in Criminal Justice.

She walks up to the stage and receives her degree, actually
it is a rolled up piece of paper the degree is sent to them
on a later date.

BIG RAY
I am proud of that girl she made it
through college.

PATRICIA
I do not know by the grace of God
she maintained that high grade point
average.  She runs the streets half
the time?  If Aisha applied herself
she could be a doctor instead of
earning BS.

BIG RAY
Your not jealous of Aisha Patricia
are you, this should be a joyous
day.

PATRICIA
No I just seem to have to work twice
as hard to get the same grades in
grade school.

BIG RAY
It does no matter how you get them
as long as you get them, this will
be you in a few years.

PATRICIA
True that!

INT. AT SHOTGUNS NEW RESIDENCE JUST BUILT IN AVON PARK,
FLORIDA - AFTERNOON

MOMMA
Sharon  look at Aisha she is all
grown up now, I remember when Leona
brought her home I was 6 months
pregnant with you.

SHARON
What's up cousin?
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AISHA
Who is that old man and those two
little ones?

SHARON
That is my old man Marlon, say hi to
my cousin Marlon.

With a west Indian dialect he addresses Aisha

MARLON
It is an honor to meet you Aisha

AISHA
Same here.  But don't you think you
are rocking the cradle?  Sharon what
happened to your husband?

SHARON
Girl he left me for a white girl!

AISHA
A white girl?  Sorry to hear that! 
Well at least you get child support?

SHARON
The man don't have no job, the white
girl supports him.  My marriage was
fake he had no legal documentation,
I do not know who that man was!

AISHA
You know Marlon?

SHARON
Why are you in my business like that
cousin.  I heard you finished college
you got a job?

AISHA
I work for the department of
corrections at the prison, doing
administrative work.  I have B.S. in
Criminal Justice.  So what's your
plans?

SHARON
I do not know Aisha, I really do not
know.

AISHA
You are not going to bring those bad
habits out of New York City here are
you?
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A tear ran down one of Sharon's eyes as she spoke.

SHARON
I don't know cousin, I am so tired,
I need a new life, that is why I
came down her with Momma.

AISHA
Well we always have aunt Peace, I am
there for you.  But!

SHARON
Don't say it Aisha, do not change
directions on me, please do not say
but.

AISHA
You know I love you Sharon and want
the best for you.

SHARON
And how is my cousin doing.

AISHA
Who?

SHARON
Rayvon, my fine ass cousin Rayvon.

AISHA
He comes home next week and he says
he has a big surprise for us.

SHARON
You reckon he gonna make a career
out of the military?

AISHA
I don't know what that man has
planned, we have to wait and see.

EXT. IN THE CAR OUTSIDE THE MAIN HOUSE - EVENING

Rayvon pops the horn several times, he is in the car with a
woman, which is his surprise he got married while in the
military, to a beautiful Puerto Rican young lady.  The problem
is his sister Aisha does not like people other than blacks
on a personal level and Rayvon knew this and that is why he
waited to break the news, never telling his wife how she
felt about other races.

INT. INSIDE THE MAIN HOUSE OF BIG RAY - EVENING

Sister Peace rushes to the door and opens it and runs to the
car.
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SISTER PEACE
My baby Rayvon made it back home to
us.  Rayvon who is that pretty girl
with you?  You found you a girlfriend?

Big Ray walks out of the door and watches them.

RAYVON
This is my surprise Aunt Peace, meet
my wife Maria Johnson.

SISTER PEACE
How could you Rayvon?

RAYVON
What did I do wrong I married the
woman I love.

SISTER PEACE
But you did not even ask for you
daddy's blessing.  You eloped?

RAYVON
When I left to the Army Big Ray told
me I was a man.

SISTER PEACE
But he is still your daddy, is he
not?

RAYVON
He said I am emancipated!

BIG RAY
Your a man and you are married so
why did you come here, why did you
send your stuff from Germany here?

RAYVON
It is only temporary, we will be
gone before you notice we arrived.

BIG RAY
Well Aisha rents the side house now
and she has a lease, so you'll can
have her old room it is big enough
for the two of you'll.  I do not
think Aisha is going to take this
very well Rayvon, you know your
sister.

 Maria speaks with a Puerto Rican accent but you can tell
she is from New York City, she is not country whatsoever.
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MARIA
What is that supposed to mean Rayvon?

RAYVON
She is the blackest red person I
know.

MARIA
What is that supposed to mean Rayvon?

RAYVON
Aisha do not like you!

MARIA
Rayvon I never met your sister.

RAYVON
She does not like anyone who is not
black.

MARIA
Why did you bring me here, you know
my past.  I will not be mistreated
again.

RAYVON
Let me fry this fish, trust me, it
will be alright and we will be out
of her before you know it.

MARIA
I trust you Rayvon, I trust you
because I love you.

SISTER PEACE
Rayvon found love.

BIG RAY
I don't know Aisha is set in her
ways, but Rayvon will not be here
long.

RAYVON
We will be gone before you know it. 
Where is Aisha by the way.

BIG RAY
She is at work, for some reason she
is working late today, she will be
home soon.  She cannot wait for your
surprise!
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EXT. IN THE DRIVE WAY BY THE HOUSE - LATER

Aisha pulls up to the house listening to her music very loud,
the name of the song is "Symbolic Castration," which is about
how black men are oppressed in white society.

INT. IN THE HOUSE - EVENING

BIG RAY
I told you she will be here soon

Aisha is dressed in correctional officer uniform well pressed
and shiny shoes.  She even looks good at work in her uniform,
she is a very neat person and very organized, she just has
one hang up, she thinks that non blacks hate black people
and are out to oppressed them and still their jobs.

Talking to herself.

AISHA
I see Rayvon is in town and got his
rented car in my spot, I see I am
going to have to retrain the young
one.

EXT. IN FRONT OF THE HOUSE ON THE PORCH.

RAYVON
Hey sister looking sharp, like a
soldier!

AISHA
Rayvon what is that in your hand?

RAYVON
Just a beer.

AISHA
When you get into town?

RAYVON
About one hour or two?

AISHA
Damn you have not even settled in
and you are drinking already?

RAYVON
It's is just a beer, I only had a
couple.

AISHA
A couple as in more than one?  Damn
you ain't wasting no time.
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RAYVON
Us soldiers we work hard and play
hard.

AISHA
That is your surprise you reenlisted?

RAYVON
F.T.A.

AISHA
Meaning?

Fuck the Army!

SISTER PEACE
Rayvon where you learn to talk like
that?

RAYVON
Excuse my French aunty.

AISHA
So what is the big surprise?

RAYVON
I want to introduce you to someone. 
She is in the house.

AISHA
Rayvon done found him a girlfriend?

INT. THEY WALK INTO THE HOUSE TOGETHER AS EVERYONE IS
SEATING DOWN NOW. - EVENING

RAYVON
Meet Maria Johnson.  Maria this is
my sister Aisha.

AISHA
Johnson, she looks Puerto Rican to
me.  Oh no, oh no, don't tell me!

RAYVON
She is my wife.

AISHA
My brother married a Puerto Rican? 
Big Ray, Aunty peace, what is the
world coming to, first there is Sharon
and Marlon, now it is Rayvon and
Maria.
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BIG RAY
How about you and Jake?  That
uneducated loser.

AISHA
He is just a friend an oppressed
black man I sm trying to help out

BIG RAY
You are just wasting time Aisha.

SISTER PEACE
Can we all just get along?

Note
End Of 1 



25.

Aisha riding in her car about two years old a four door
economy car 4 cylinder automobile.  The type of car to be
named based on sponsorship.  She rides into town on her way
home and sees Rayvon in front of the hangout storefront where
the men mostly men anyway hangout and drink alcohol and talk
about things of little importance.  She sees Rayvon behind a
car on a dirt road with a malt liquor bottle turned up to
his mouth taking a piss (Leak) drunk to the point of silly. 
She opens the window that is electronic and waves at Rayvon.

INT. IN HER CAR PASSING BY THE STOREFRONT HANGOUT SPOT -
EVENING

AISHA
Hey Rayvon

(She Yell)

RAYVON
What is up Sister?

AISHA
You need a ride home?

RAYVON
I am alright, just getting my drink
on.

AISHA
When you have time we need to talk! 
OK?

RAYVON
Bet!

Aisha pulls into the driveway at the house and goes to the
front house to see Maria.  She enters the house, she has a
key to both homes.  Maria is sitting down watching television,
it is about 5 pm and she is watching the evening news.

INT. IN THE LIVING ROOM IN THE MAIN HOUSE - EVENING

MARIA
Hi Aisha how was your day?

AISHA
Why are you trying to be nice to me
you know I do not like you or your
kind.

Note
Act 2 Everybody has Demons
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MARIA
You need to get over it girl, Rayvon
is my man now.

AISHA
Well your man is up the hill pissy
drunk.  I saw the fool drinking a
beer and pissing at the same time
behind a car.  I guess that is what
happens when you marry outside you
race, they drive you to booze?

MARIA
I do not know what your problem is
but on the s real, he was not always
like that, when I met him he was the
nicest person I even met.  I was a
virgin when we married, he was that
special to me, then something went
wrong, he changed.  I am really afraid
for him.

AISHA
Do you really love my brother?

MARIA
Yes I love Rayvon.

AISHA
I just do not understand why you
didn't marry another Puerto Rican.

MARIA
Does love really know color lines?

AISHA
Maybe and maybe not, but people do.

MARIA
And whose problem is that?

AISHA
From the looks of things yours!

EXT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY
ROUTINE - MORNING

SISTER PEACE
So how is everything going girl, how
is you nd your daddy getting along?

AISHA
Daddy is the least of my worries.
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SISTER PEACE
Tell me what is bothering you?

AISHA
I do not know but I think Rayvon has
a serious problem.  He drinks everyday
all day long, comes in drunk everyday. 
I do not know what that woman did to
my brother but he is not the same.

SISTER PEACE
Oh Rayvon is just in a station of
life, he has been under a lot of
stress, I am sure he will get himself
together.

AISHA
I do not know aunty, there is
something wrong I know my brother
even after being apart the last few
years, he is not himself.

SISTER PEACE
Give it time!  So how do you like
working in classification out there
in the prison?

AISHA
Well I like the steady hours and the
office environment, I cannot complain.

SISTER PEACE
I am glad you are content with your
job, not everyone gets to do something
meaningful to them.

INT. IN THE LIVING ROOM AT SHARON'S HOME WITH PARENTS -
EVENING

SHARON
Me and Marlon is going to the store
and will be back in a couple of hours.

MOMMA
So why don't you take your two
children with you?

SHARON
I will be back!

Sharon walks out of the front door going towards her car,
she has a pretty good used car, kind of big.  Marlon is
setting in the driver seat.
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MOMMA
(Yelled)

You need to take care of your damn
kids and stop running the streets
with that sorry ass man.  And he
don't have  a damn drivers license
that illegal son of a bitch.

MARLON
She's a blood clod.

SHARON
Come on lets go start up the car.

Sharon hands him about $200 and he adds it to a pocket full
of money and smiles.

MARLON
Here is $20, I am going to the club
after I drop you off at the old man's
house, he will spend money tonight
on you.

SHARON
I have to fuck him?

MARLON
You know he likes head, but if you
play it right you will not have to
do anything he likes rocks, all you
have to do is get him open with a
few hits and take him for everything,
then tell him you have to meet with
your man and you will be back and
leave him waiting until next month. 
Give me mine's and you can go and
smoke your fucking brains out at the
rock house.

SHARON
You make me feel so dirty.

MARLON
Save the bullshit for your tricks
bitch.

They drive for about 10 minutes listening to Reggae music
and he stops the car around the corner from the old man's
house

SHARON
I am going to fuck him, then I will
have him where I want him.
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MARLON
If you fuck him, fuck him good, then
you can tell him good night instead
of goodbye.

SHARON
I can walk from here.

EXT. AT THE FRONT OF THE HOUSE OF THE OLD MAN - EVENING

She knock on the door of an old dirty house and the door is
answered by an old literally dirty man with a dirty mouth
and she is fine as hell, but she does not care and is
shameless.

SHARON
Hi Daddy!  You going to let me in?

She walks into the house and he asked her why you never call
me by my name?

SHARON (CONT'D)
Daddy you want to eat my pum pum,
you give me some face and I will
fuck you silly tonight.  I want you
Daddy.

OLD MAN DADDY
Really?

His eye opened up wide he was so excited.

INT. INSIDE OLD MAN'S HOUSE - NIGHT

In the bed together, you can tell they are nude but all you
see is her shoulders and his chest, she covers herself as
she gets up to take a shower as old man Daddy lays there
with a big smile on his face.  She takes a shower and is
dressed.

SHARON

Good night Daddy, see you later.

Sharon walks out the door.

OLD MAN DADDY
See you later baby.

After see walks out, he raises his arms up high saying Thank
you, thank you, thank you, he was so happy.  Sharon walks
around the corner and call Marlon on the cell phone to come
and pick her up.
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EXT. AROUND THE CORNER FROM THE TRICK'S HOUSE - MOMENTS
LATER

MARLON (O.S.)
Get in the car woman

SHARON
About time Marlon

MARLON
I had some business to take care of.

Aisha hand Marlon $200 and counts it to him.

SHARON
Just drop me off please.  I know you
think small of me and is just using
me.  I know you think I am a fool.

MARLON
You know nothing bout what I think. 
I drop you off now.

They drive to the crack spot where crack addicts hangout
together and use and buy drugs.  There are a few of them in
town.

INT. AT AISHA'S HOME - CONTINUOUS

JAKE
Thanks for the meal Aisha, you sure
can burn.  One day you will make
someone a good wife.

AISHA
I guess that someone will be you
Jake.  I think you are a true friend,
but I wish you would go back to school
and at least get your GED, before
you get yourself mixed up in something
wrong.  Ain't you tired of living
with your momma?

JAKE
You have 2 no 3 bedrooms, why won't
you let me use one.

AISHA
Number one I have a roommate and number two
the man I live under a roof with, the next one
anyway will be my husband and if you really cared
about me Jake you would go back to school so
you can get a job, then maybe we could hold this
conversation.  I  thought we had an understanding.
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Together in harmony they say, "No sex before marriage."

JAKE
I respect your wishes you know that
Aisha.

AISHA
So how long do you think I am going
to wait around.  Ain't you tired of
pulling yourself, get a job man and
hold on to it for awhile.

JAKE
Maybe I am not smart like you.

AISHA
I did not say get a degree I said
get a damn GED.  Is that asking too
much?

JAKE
No you are right Aisha.  Are you
going to let me hold that?

AISHA
And I am tired of supporting you,
what kind of man always asked his
woman for money.

JAKE
I stopped slinging for you Aisha.

AISHA
For me, For me or for you damn self? 
You are staying out of jail for me? 
I do not know who is worst you are
the Puerto Rican.

JAKE
How about your brother who drinks
everyday?

AISHA
Do not go there, Rayvon served this country in
the army and gets unemployment and has his
own money in the bank.  Don't go there Jake,
Rayvon is just going through a phase, but you
have been singing the same old song since I met
you.  Here take this $50 and go hangout with the
boys.

INT. AT THE CRACK SPOT - NIGHT

Sharon is sitting in the crack spot smoking crack from the pipe.  The environment 
is filthy loaded with people at the bottom of society, but it is orderly because it is
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run by gangs who demand order and if someone get beside themselves they are
gang banged and taken out of the area and put on the streets to keep the heat
away, you see someone disorderly dealt with while Sharon is smoking and in a
daze.

EXT. AT THE CRACK SPOT - CONTINUOUS

Jake approaches a two story seemingly a lounge make out of
wood and needs a paint job, he walk to the front door where
there is a bouncer standing there mellow music is playing. 
Jake show the bouncer the $50 Aisha gave him.

JAKE
$20, $40, $50, I have my $50 is
everything cool?

BOUNCER
How you always come with the minimum
wage and hang out so damn long?

JAKE
I have friends?

BOUNCER
In this place?  No way man!

JAKE
Sometimes it is not what you know
but who you know.

BOUNCER
All right player!

INT. AT THE CRACK SPOT - CONTINUOUS

Jake walk into the crack spot, now the audience knows what
he is all about, he walks to the table where Sharon is at.

JAKE
What's up friend?

SHARON
Jake Chill here take a hit, so my
cousin done gave you some more of
her hard earned money.  She is too
nice you shouldn't do her like take

Jake takes a hit.

JAKE
I do not fuck her or pimp her, I just talk to her
feed into her dreams and I tax her small time. 
But you let Marlon treat you like a ho and bitch.
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SHARON
But I am different, I am no good.

JAKE
I do not know Sharon but you do not
belong here.

SHARON
Here?

JAKE
In this world, in this place, around
people like Marlon.

SHARON
You are blowing my mother fucking
high either get the fuck up or shout
the hell up.  There is the man.

The drug dealer walks up them.

DRUG DEALER
I already know you want a $50 right,
you minimum wage bitch.  Now Sharon
is a good customer I heard you fucking
with her on my way here.  Anymore
shit out of you and you know, you
get the treatment right out of here,
understand bitch.

JAKE
I just want to get my rock on, I
promise you will not hear another
thing out of me.

SHARON
Sorry Jake but you was blowing my
high.

JAKE
You almost go my ass kicked in here.

SHARON
Just chill man and lets mellow out, I got a few
hundred to smoke up as long as you chill you are
invited to hang with me and keep me company,
now do you want to smoke or preach fool.

JAKE
Smoke!

SHARON
After the shit I did for this money,
please do not blow my high.
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JAKE
OK Sharon, let's chill.

They smoke crack together at the crack spot until they run
out of money and crack at which time they are told they have
to leave in 30 minutes after their table is empty of crack. 
They smoke a cigarette and leave quietly.

EXT. AT THE CRACK SPOT - LATER

JAKE
You do not have to call Marlon, I
will give you a ride home.

SHARON
Thanks, but it won't look right,
plus I pay that nigger good he will
pick me up.

JAKE
Well I have to go in anyway.

SHARON
Like you have a job, Jake I know you
want to be my friend, but you cannot
be my friend and Aisha's friend also.

JAKE
We don't fuck!

SHARON
Is that what it is?  You want some
of this nasty ass pussy.

JAKE
Later Sharon, I will see you later
OK?

SHARON
Later Jake!

Sharon calls Marlon on the cell phone and smoke a cigarette
as she waits, Marlon pick her up and takes her home and leaves
her at the front of the house.

MOMMA
It's almost 2 o'clock in the morning and you said
you would be gone 2 hours.  You should be a
shamed of yourself.  No real man would keep a
woman away from her children like this all the
time.  Go take a shower you stink.
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SHARON
I am sorry momma, you just do not
understand what I am going through
everyday I am so tired momma.

MOMMA
Go take a shower, there is some food
on the stove you just need to heat
it up.

Sharon cries in sad scene, you see the hurt in her eyes and
think it is because of her present actions, but momma hints
to the problem but it is not given away yet.

MOMMA (CONT'D)
You know you cannot live in the past
forever, you are only hurting yourself
child.  You are a child of God you
just don't know it yet.  We all have
our trials and tribulations.

EXT. ABOUT 30 MILES OUT OF TOWN IN CITY CALLED LAKE WALES -
LATER

Jake goes to a nice size house and he gets the key from under
the rug in front of the house and opens the door and walks
in and a white woman in sexy lingerie approaches him.

JAKE
Baby I got here as soon as I could.

He walks up to her and French kisses her, picks her up and
carries her to one of many bedrooms.  Now the audience knows
what Jake is all about.

INT. SISTER PEACE HOME AT A COFFEE TABLE - SATURDAY
AFTERNOON-

Sister Peace and Momma drink coffee together on Saturdays regularly and gossip. 
Sister Peace is the sister of Momma's husband Shotgun and Aisha's father Big
Ray.  Momma is in her 50's and Sister Peace is in her 40's they are about 10 years
apart.  They are seated at a coffee table, Sister Peace has a very nice house
because she has a successful career as an educator at the college, she has a
Master's Degree, but knows how to communicate both as a professional and a
neighbor of not as educated people.  Momma has a Associate Degree in Culinary
Arts and is the head cook at the Church.  Also what contributes to Sister Peace
success is her husband is a successful Preacher and has the biggest Ministry in
this small City.

SISTER PEACE
What is worrying you?  I can see it
in your face.
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MOMMA
This coffee taste good.  I do not
understand what is going on with
this family.

SISTER PEACE
Momma I do not understand this myself. 
I thought we would all be together
and everything would just fall in
place, but these children have gone
crazy.

MOMMA
Between me and you sister, we have
to do something, we have to get to
the bottom of this craziness.  Between
me and you, please keep it to
yourself, when Sharon was 12 years
old Junior got her pregnant and she
had to get an abortion, that is why
your brother is putting up with her
it is guilt.

SISTER PEACE
I knew there was something going on
in her mind, because she was such a
fine child and then one day she just
went crazy.  You should not have
kept it a secret you should have
found her some help.

MOMMA
Yea but her Daddy was worried about
that fool going to jail, he was 22
years old when it happened, so Shotgun
just sent him packing and never
allowed him back in his home.

SISTER PEACE
It's not too late I know some people who are in
the profession of psychology that can help her,
she might  need medications for awhile, but one
thing for sure she needs professional help.

Momma starts to cry saying oh God what did I do to my child.

MOMMA
It gets worst, I think she is using drugs on a regular
basis, she comes in smiling strange all late hours
of the night and that man she be with, I do not
know but he is no good.  She is so beautiful yet
so ugly, she has low self esteem.
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SISTER PEACE
That Aisha she is running around
with Jake he is not good, has no
education not even a GED and he hits
on her for money.  It seems that low
self esteem is running rampant in
this family.  She has never been the
same since she lost her momma and
then momma dead right behind her
momma.  She just ran the streets
during her college years and hooked
up with that man.

MOMMA
I hope she don't get AIDS!

SISTER PEACE
That is the part I do not understand,
she says she is not sleeping with
him and they are waiting to marry
before having sex, but he does not
seem to be that type of guy.

MOMMA
He is using her, just like Marlon is
using Sharon.  And Sister what the
hell is wrong with Rayvon, he seems
to have a fine wife she works and is
in college working towards becoming
a nurse and he has been drunk since
he came home.  I do not understand
this Sister?

SISTER PEACE
There has to be something we can do,
there has to be something.

MOMMA
I think we should hire a private
investigator and have everybody check
out.  If we spy on my children it is
only right that we make sure your
perfect family is all it seems.

SISTER PEACE
I am married to a Paster and all my
children do is hang out in the church
and go to school, they are young
children in grade school.

MOMMA
You should no better than anybody that everybody
has demons.  If the devil is in my home the home
of your brother and the home of your other brother,
what makes you think he stop there?
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SISTER PEACE
I have a confession to make also, my
home is not as happy as it seems.

MOMMA
Don't tell my Dr. Rev.  Love don't
give you any love Sister.

SISTER PEACE
It is not that.

MOMMA
You was never much for the streets,
but you was always book smart, now
how much sense does it make to you
that a 50 year old man can't get it
up with some help, they have all
kinds of stuff out there.

SISTER PEACE
I think he is under a lot of pressure.

MOMMA
Sister it is more to that story, between me and
you, don't mention it to any of the other family
members, lets go to Orlando and hire a private
investigation firm and get to the bottom of this
mess, it is our duty as the women of this family to
get to the bottom of what is going here, it is just
not right.  We will do this on our own do not tell
your brothers or husband, they all will be checked
out and you can have me checked out and I have
you check out.

SISTER PEACE
But if we know we are being checked
out?

They say together

SISTER PEACE & MOMMA
It will keep us honest

MOMMA
We will go to see a firm next week and say we
are going shopping.  We have to find the firm on
our own not to tip anyone off.

SISTER PEACE
I will handle that, there is all
types of information at the college
and I am good at research I will
find a good firm to do this job.
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MOMMA
Agreed?

SISTER PEACE
Agreed!

INT. AT THE PRIVATE INVESTIGATION OFFICE IN ORLANDO, FLORIDA -
AFTERNOON - ONE WEEK LATER

The walk into this high tech office with surveillance cameras
and the works I leave this scene to the discretion of the
director.

RECEPTIONIST
Welcome to the Advance Surveillance
Investigations, INC.  How can we
help you?

SISTER PEACE
First of all money is not an issue
as long as it is reasonable.  I did
my research and have an idea as to
what I need and according to your
advertisement and a close friend
said your firm is up to the task.

MOMMA
Sister this was supposed to be between
us!

SISTER PEACE
You worry too much.

RECEPTIONIST
Well informed clients are our best
clients, this way we can cut through
the chase.

SISTER PEACE
I have everything I want typed up and itemized it
is detailed but it is not very complex.  Basically it
calls for background checks and undercover
operations.  I have the names or alleged names
of everyone we want investigated and recent
photographs of everyone as well.

RECEPTIONIST
Let me set you up for an interview,
sit down and relax it will not be
long and while you are waiting you
can fill out these forms.



40.

MOMMA
Thank you.

SISTER PEACE
Thanks you.

They filled out the forms and gave a copy of what they want
done to the receptionist, who personally takes it to the
interviewing officer.  After about 1/2 hour they are called
in for an interview.  They walk into an office with three
people sort of like a small board and are asked questions.

INTERVIEWER 1
We understand what you want done and
have a few suggestions but first we
have to ask you why, are you
investigation your own family

MOMMA
You ever heard the saying that your
sickness are your secrets?

INTERVIEWER 2
I am a firm believer in that cliché, so you believe
there are hidden truths that is the underlying cause
to your family problems?  And you admit Sharon
was molested as a child and you Ms. Love has
had no sexual relations with your husband for
over a year, due to alleged stress problems, and
is there anything else we should know?

MOMMA
Sharon is on drugs

INTERVIEWER 3
And Rayvon has been drinking since
he returned from the military and
you think there is more to this?

INTERVIEWER 1
This seems like a simple case, you
just want  background checks and an
accountability check.

SISTER PEACE
Accountability check?

INTERVIEWER 2
Basically what they are doing on a daily, weekly
and in this case for one month.  We should have
all your answers within one month according to
the information you provided us, just keep this
between us, they are all unsuspecting.

(MORE)
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INTERVIEWER 2 (CONT'D)
Do not call us we will call you and for security
purposes we will give you'll a couple of passwords
that will identify our agents in situations that may
make it necessary.  You will be billed accordingly
can you handle $25G

SISTER PEACE
How much up front?

INTERVIEWER 2
50% up front and 50% at the time of
the report.

SISTER PEACE
You have a deal!  However there is
one stipulation, I want you to break
the news to the family all of us at
one time, to include us.  Will there
be any additional costs?

INTERVIEWER 1
No additional costs as long as you
setup the meeting.

SISTER PEACE
You have a deal!  Sir this may sound
strange to you, but I know in my
heart that everybody has demons, and
I know in my heart that something is
wrong, very wrong!

They paid in the form of a cashiers check which is a service
at the agency to conceal the clients.

INT. IN THE CAR ON THE WAY BACK HOME - EVENING

MOMMA
I hope we are doing the right thing
Sister?

SISTER PEACE
It is done, now we went shopping, we got the stuff
in the trunk, I have a safe deposit box to store the
cashiers check we used to pay the firm and the 
receipt and remember what he said keep this to
ourselves, and it will only take one month, try to
be as normal as possible.  You got it!

MOMMA
My lips are sealed.

SISTER PEACE
Basically there are going to do two
things on everyone which is:
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#1: Background checks on all the
people on the list.  In addition to
the normal background checks there
will be an investigation on Rayvon
and Maria's military records called
201 files.

#2: Undercover surveillance on all
involved and an investigation into
Love's medical records.

MOMMA
$25,000 is lot of money.

SISTER PEACE
I think we will be getting off cheap
and it can save our family.

MOMMA
I guess you are right and they have
a lot of people to investigate, I
guess they have to get paid for their
time and labor.  And what was the
password?

SISTER PEACE
"Satan's time is up."

They continued to drive home and gossip as the always do,
Sister Peace dropped Momma off at her home and then went
home.

INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - NIGHT

At the CIA Headquarters in McLean, Virginia moments after Sister Peace and
Momma visited the Advance Surveillance Investigations, INC. they came up on a
data base, because Rayvon Johnson was put under investigation.  Rayvon Johnson
was a intelligence courier, meaning he transmits information, but he did not know
he was a part of black operations.  There were things about him that he was
unaware of about himself, through the use of mind control.  This was a major
SNAFU and it was reported all the way up the ladder.

SERCET AGENT PARKS
Sir we have a major problem one of
our major couriers have been
compromised.  Rayvon Johnson has
been put under investigation.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
That is impossible, he is one of our
untouchables, who gave the authority?
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SERCET AGENT PARKS
Advance Surveillance Investigations,
INC.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
That is impossible we are ASI. 
Someone has explaining to to here.

SERCET AGENT PARKS
His Aunts!

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
What do you mean by his aunts?

SERCET AGENT PARKS
They put their whole damn family
under investigation, using private
investigators and they went to ASI.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
Is there a reason for this decision
known?

SERCET AGENT PARKS
Ms. Love a wife to a Preacher last
words at the interview was about
everybody has demons.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
Is this about their religion?

SERCET AGENT PARKS
I do not think so, I think Rayvon's cover backfired
and the whole family is just in shambles and they
are just concerned and can afford to hire help. 
The good thing is they went to our agency I say
we give them a feed and control the investigation.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
What about Arlington?

SERCET AGENT PARKS
I am sure the Department of Defense will
cooperate, but there is a screw up in the works. 
He was supposed to reenlist after his drunkard
spree.  The plan was he get drunk for 6 months
do not look for a job, blew his money and reenlist
in the Army.  His wife is one of ours and she was
going to support and influence the decision.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
OK you contact the Advance Surveillance
Investigations, INC. in Orlando, Florida, the DOD
in Arlington, Virginia and the FBI in Washington

(MORE)
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ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS (CONT'D)
DC and do not leave the Secret Service out of the
loop, this guy belongs to the President.  If shit
has to hit the fan we have to control it, on this one
you report directly to me, no leaks, this is big
Secret Agent Parks and even I do not know
exactly how big yet.  I have to personally visit the
White House and the Pentagon to measure the
magnitude and until then nobody makes a move
and I mean nobody, understood?

SERCET AGENT PARKS
Yes sir!

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
There will be no questions answered
any further at this time. Dismissed.

EXT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY
ROUTINE - MORNING

As they are tracking as they do 5 days a week, Aisha tells
her aunt a a little bit about her suspicions due to a dream
she had.  Aisha was always known for being very spiritual.

AISHA
Aunty something about that Puerto
Rican just does not meet the eye.

SISTER PEACE
You want me to be honest with you, a
lot doesn't meet the eye.

AISHA
No aunty Peace I had a dream and it
was so real there is danger in our
home.

SISTER PEACE
Just give it time everything will be
alright.

AISHA
Aunty there is something about that
girl I feel it, maybe it is all a
dream, I hope so, but it seemed so
real, she is not right and I am not
saying this because she is not black,
this is something I feel in my heart.

SISTER PEACE
Everything will be alright, trust
me, you do trust me, don't you?
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AISHA
Yes aunt Peace I trust you, you have
always been there for us.

SISTER PEACE
Can I ask you something?

AISHA
What do I see in Jake?

SISTER PEACE
He is a waste of your time girl,
can't you see it?

They continue to run and the scene fades away.

You see Aisha pull off to work in her car, then you see Maria
pull off to work in her car, then you see Rayvon vomit in
the toilet bowl and then to see Big Ray in the kitchen.

BIG RAY
That is one crazy son of a bitch, he
cannot be my son.

EXT. IN THE HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM - MORNING

Big Ray walks out of the kitchen to the living room and Rayvon comes into the living
room behind him, the television is on CNN.  Commercials are on and before the
conversation between Big Ray and Rayvon, you here the commercial about the
Movie "the Son of the Made Man," Starring Michael Jackson as the Son coming to
theaters near you, a must film.

RAYVON
Can I change the station all they
talk about is the war.

BIG RAY
Sure son, are you still living in
the war?

RAYVON
I don't know but time flew by, I
blew about 5G out of $10G, it has
been 4 months and I have not even
looked for a job, for some reason I
am compelled to drink every damn day
I have fucking nightmares, I am
married to a damn stranger, I don't
know what the fuck.

BIG RAY
Maybe you have Post Traumatic Stress
Disorder and need to go to the VA
for help?
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RAYVON
I am fucking rewired man, fucking
rewired and I know it;  I just do
not understand why or what the fuck
is going on anymore, I am so fucking
far gone.

BIG RAY
Let me take you to the hospital for
help!

RAYVON
No!  Fuck no!  This is why I am
reluctant to talk to anyone, because
nobody will believe anything I have
to say.  I know you think I am a
drunk and I am crazy, those fucking
bastards made me crazy.  They pick
my fucking number out of a hat and
they

(yelling)
Literally fucked me, they raped me
daddy, they fucking raped me for no
damn reason and now they are dead
and nothing happened.  Fucking why
man because they rewired me and I do
not know why.

BIG RAY
I do not know what to say, I know
the government are crooks, but this
is shit you read about, it never
happens to you or your own.

RAYVON
Don't say nothing just listen and help me think
this out because I do not know what the hell is
going on anymore.  I mean I hate the fucking
Army, but all I can think about is reenlisting.  The
Army is my revolving fucking door.

BIG RAY
You plan to go back in and you hate
that shit.

RAYVON
I am a trained fucking killer, that is all I am now, I
thrust for blood.  Something is fucking very wrong
and I cannot stay sober long enough to figure the
shit out, I am fucking REWIRED!  Let me get a
damn beer out of the refrigerator.  Daddy man,
you know me, I had my grudges with you, but this
is bigger than that they mind fucked me.



47.

BIG RAY
Rayvon I believe you and we may all
be in danger.  Look I hate your
drinking habits but between me and
you, now this is between me and you,
while they are gone to work and
school, you do your drinking in the
house and you talk to me and tell me
everything and I mean everything. 
Two heads is better than one
especially if one is drunk and as
you said it yourself brainwashed, to
the point you are doing things and
want to do things against your own
will.  Listen to me you do not drive
anymore, you do not hang up the
streets so people can talk about
you, Rayvon you have to trust someone
and it cannot be a stranger and never
tell her that.

RAYVON
Daddy man I am rewired, not stupid,
she is fine she is a good fuck and
beautiful person, so I asked myself,
why in the fuck is she with me?  I
do not deserve Maria!  Not in the
condition I am in or was in when I
married her, this cannot be right! 
I never trusted her, I just married
her because I thought it was a good
fucking idea.  I have been mind
fucked!

BIG RAY
OK Rayvon now I am confused.  Let me
think about this, we will talk again
tomorrow or better yet a little later
in a few hours, I believe you because
Aisha always had an imagination, but
you just have strong feelings and
yes I abused your momma.  You are
not crazy you saw what you saw but
Aisha, if this was Aisha I would
wonder but you Rayvon was always
down to earth.  I believe you saw
and see what it is for what it is
worth.  I just do not know where
this is going to lead to.

EXT. IN FRONT OF AISHA'S HOUSE - NIGHT

Maria goes to Aisha's house and rings the bell and Aisha
hear the bell and know it is Maria because she requested
that she come over to have a talk.
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AISHA
That is you Maria?

MARIA
Yes it is me!

Aisha opens the door and lets Maria in.

AISHA
Have a seat and make yourself
comfortable.

MARIA
Come on I was raised in New York
City too, please do not play yourself,
you do not like me because I am Puerto
Rican, just say what it is you have
to say.

AISHA
Oh so spunky are you?

MARIA
I am not afraid of you Aisha, just
because you work at the prison?  I
been to war!

AISHA
In the rear!

MARIA
And you is in the office, classifying
people.

AISHA
OK to the point, let me ask you one
question.  Give me three reasons why
you love my drunk ass brother?

MARIA
I am out of here, why don't you ask
yourself that question?

AISHA
I knew him all my life and we have
the same blood running through our
vain.

MARIA
That is two reasons!

AISHA
He is my brother.
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MARIA
That is still two reasons, so he is
your blood brother.

AISHA
And he loves me.  Now you give me
just one reason.

MARIA
Your love is prewar, mine's is
postwar, we have an understanding
that you can never be a part of.

AISHA
So what are you telling me this is a charity case,
he told me about your being adopted and feeling
you had no one until him and personally I think
that is all bullshit.  What do you want from him,
hell what does he even have that you do not have
and do not say family, because I do not like you
and you got that right.

MARIA
I am out of here.

AISHA
Go!

(to herself she says
after Maria leaves)

That girl got game, she ain't right?

INT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY
ROUTINE - MORNING

AISHA
Aunty I had a short discussion with
Maria and she is not right the girl
has game.

SISTER PEACE
Oh Aisha you are going to ruin it.

AISHA
Ruin what.

SISTER PEACE
Stop for a moment.

They stopped running and Aisha put her hands to her side.

AISHA
Ruin what aunty?
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SISTER PEACE
You have to promise not to mention a
word to anyone especially Momma and
Sharon, no, you have to keep this
between me and you.  Do I have your
word?

AISHA
Yes you have my word, you can trust
me with your secrets.

SISTER PEACE
We are all under an investigation.

AISHA
My God why and how do you know?

SISTER PEACE
Me and Momma did it, there is too
much going on in our home and we
just wanted to get down to the bottom
of it.

AISHA
You what?  How could you?

SISTER PEACE
It is done and there is no turning
back, you can whistle blow or sit
back and see what turns up.

AISHA
Let finish our run, you was always
there for us, thank you and thank
you for your honesty, why didn't you
tell me sooner?

SISTER PEACE
It is a long story.

AISHA
I am all ears!

INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - DAY

Assistant Director Richards calls a closed door meeting with
Secret Agent Parks and Special Agent Garret who is a member
of the Secret Service out of Washington, DC.  It was decided
that this will be a joint detail force.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
Secret Agent Parks meet Special Agent Garret,
you'll will be working this case together.

(MORE)
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ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS (CONT'D)
This will be a collaborative detail between the CIA
and Secret Service and the two of you'll will answer
directly to me.  This action is of the highest
priorities, confidentiality level is top secret and we
cannot fail this is of the nature of national security. 
Gentlemen it is that serious that nothing and I
mean no corrective actions to any and all situations
will be taken without the approval of the White
House.  Agent Garret you have the floor.

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
It is a simple solution to a complex situation.  We
have been given joint intelligence administrative
privileges.  We have access to just about every
database necessary to perform surveillance and
and background checks at all levels and that is
what we are required to do.  Gentlemen we have
at our exposure the ability to see the date on a
dime in the middle of a forest and hear a pin drop
at a Rock Concert, well not outright but we have
some of the highest technological equipment at
our exposure for 30 days.

SERCET AGENT PARKS
So exactly what is the mission?

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
Investigate and feed information to the  Advance
Surveillance Investigation, INC. which I understand
is one of your civilian operations.  Basically we
are going to do their investigation and feed them
on a need to know basis.  We are authorized to
shed light on everything but that Rayvon is an
intelligence courier and his wife and Agent
observer, this two factors have to be concealed. 
Sir I am done.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
Get to work immediately.  Outline a plan of action
and I will approve it ASAP with modifications only
if absolutely necessary which means it is outside
the boundaries of the protocol.  Your job is to find
out everything most is a matter of review and take
no actions but submit your corrective suggestions
by all means.  Dismissed1

The two walks out discussing ideas Asst. Dir. Richards stares
into the camera with the most serious look the scene is to
tell the audience the seriousness of the situation at hand.

INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - LATER

The two agents return to the office of the Asst. Dir. to
gain approval for their plan of action.
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SERCET AGENT PARKS
Sir here is our suggested plan of
action we submit for approval.

He looks it over mumbling to himself good, very good, I am
impressed and so on.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
Approved

The two agents shake hands for their first success as partners and then the Asst.
Dir. Hands them their authorization codes.  Which are special identification cards
with a special magnetic stripe.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS (CONT'D)
Here are you'll authorization code,
these cards have tracking devices,
picture ID blood sample DNA codes. 
It will get you'll in many major
databases and will expire in 30 days. 
All information acquired with these
cards will cross my desk and the
White House in parallel.  All
information acquired should be mission
oriented.  Now get to work. 
Dismissed!

EXT. AT THE FRONT OF BIG RAY'S HOUSE - NIGHT

Sister Peace pops her horn in front of Big Ray's House, to
gain the attention of Big Ray.

INT. INSIDE THE MAIN HOUSE OF BIG RAY - NIGHT

BIG RAY
Rayvon can you see who is popping
the damn horn out front?

RAYVON
No problem!

Rayvon opens the door and sees Sister Peace in the car.

SISTER PEACE
Rayvon how are you doing?

RAYVON
OK what's up aunt Peace?

SISTER PEACE
Is your daddy home?

RAYVON
Big Ray!  Big Ray!  Aunt Peace is
out front, she wants you.
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Big Ray comes to the door and walks outside.

SISTER PEACE
Big Ray come here man.

BIG RAY
Let me get my shoes!

EXT. IN FRONT OF SISTER PEACE CAR - NIGHT

SISTER PEACE
Get in the car, just get in man.

INT. INSIDE OF SISTER PEACE CAR. - NIGHT

They pull off.

BIG RAY
Where are we going?

SISTER PEACE
No where special, we have to talk.

BIG RAY
In that case lets stop at the
Supermarket on the 27.

They head to the Walmart Super store in the next town Sebring,
which is about 10 miles south from Big Ray's house.

SISTER PEACE
I don't know where to start Big Ray.

BIG RAY
Start at the beginning!

SISTER PEACE
Did you know Junior molested Sharon
and she had to get an abortion when
she was 12 years old?

BIG RAY
This is the first I heard about it. 
I know Junior was a pervert but I
never heard anything about this. 
But it makes sense!

SISTER PEACE
It don't make any sense Big Ray.  It
doesn't make any sense at all.

BIG RAY
It explains why Shotgun puts up with all of her
bullshit.

(MORE)
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BIG RAY (CONT'D)
They kept this shit secret all of these years and it
explains why she is acting out.  Damn the
supermarket, let's go see Shotgun.

SISTER PEACE
But I promised Momma I would not say
anything.

BIG RAY
Everybody knows damn well you cannot
keep a damn secret.  Telling you
something is like yelling on the
damn rooftop.  Now let's go see
Shotgun, damn it!

They turn around and head back to Avon Park to see Shotgun
and Sister Peace tells him everything to include the
investigation.

EXT. IN FRONT OF SHOTGUN'S HOME - LATER

Big Ray get's out of the car angry as hell and walks up to
the door of Shotgun and bangs on the door.

BIG RAY
Shotgun get your dumb ass out here
you damn fool.

INT. INSIDE OF SHOTGUN'S HOME - NIGHT

Shotgun opens the door.

SHOTGUN
Big Ray what's wrong?

BIG RAY
You are what is wrong, I should put
my foot up your damn ass, you stupid
son of a bitch.  You let me down
Shotgun you let me down.

SHOTGUN
What are you talking about.

MOMMA (O.S.)
He knows Shotgun, now everybody knows,
Sharon suffered long enough.

BIG RAY
Why Shotgun, why?

SHOTGUN
I didn't want my son to go to jail.
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BIG RAY
Fuck that punk ass bitch, get your
ass in the damn car and let's find
Sharon.

Shotgun goes in the house and gets his sawed off shotgun.

SHOTGUN
I fucked up Big Brother, I have a
wrong to try to right.

BIG RAY
Not like that man, we will get that
son of a bitch Marlon on our time on
our terms, but we might need that,
in fact Sister let's double back to
my house, so I can get my heat.

They headed to Big Ray's house.

EXT. IN FRONT ON BIG RAY'S HOUSE - CONTINUOUS

BIG RAY
Keep the engine running!  In fact
sister you go and stay at Aisha's
house to we get back and do not ask
why just do it.  Shotgun I will drive! 
I will be right back.

Sister Peace gets out of the car and goes to Aisha's house.

INT. AT AISHA'S HOME - CONTINUOUS

AISHA
Aunty what is going on?

SISTER PEACE
Oh Lord what did I do.  What did I
do?

AISHA
You told my daddy that stuff you
told me.  Why did I ask everybody
knows you cannot keep a secret.  You
was always there for us aunty!

SISTER PEACE
You think I did the right thing?

AISHA
I think you did the only thing, you
don't think Momma knew you could not
keep a secret?  Everybody knows Sister
Peace can keep no secrets.
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EXT. IN FRONT ON BIG RAY'S HOUSE - CONTINUOUS

Big Ray gets into the car on the driver side.

BIG RAY
Now lets go find that girl Damn it!

EXT. IN THE STREETS - MOMENTS LATER

They pull off to find Sharon.  They travel around town asking
people about where do Sharon and Marlon hangs out together
and they came across a young woman called Jill that hangs
out in the same place and knows who Sharon is.

JILL
I know that red bone girl Sharon and
her pimp Marlon.  They drive together
but they do not smoke together.

SHOTGUN
You mean Marlon pimps my girl, what
she takes from us is not enough.

JILL
Mr. I do not want to offend you but
Sharon is such a pretty girl but she
goes to bed with anything with legs
on it.

Shotgun head bows down as he shakes his head in shame and
then says.

SHOTGUN
Big Ray I did not know man.

BIG RAY
Remember we will deal with this on
our terms at our time, be cool man
this has probably been going on for
a some time now.

Then he directs himself to Jill and asks here.

BIG RAY (CONT'D)
So young lady where can we find my
niece?

JILL
I am not petty like Red Bone the men
do not spend on me like her, I will
show you the place for $50, but you
have to let me out around the corner,
she is probably there right now.
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BIG RAY
You got it but why $50, why not $20,
or $100, what is so damn special
about $50.

JILL
That is what it cost to get in, you
show them $50 at the door and they
let you in and you have to buy a $50
piece .  After you smoke up your
crack you have a half of an hour to
leave.  I come and go and sharon be
there still she is a big spender. 
Sometimes she be alone and sometimes
she be with this dude Jake, he is
the only person she lets smoke her
shit for free.

BIG RAY
Jake?  Jake who?

JILL
You'll sure be new in town.  Mr. you
Sharon's uncle?

BIG RAY
Yea she is my niece and his daughter,
why you ask.

JILL
Man I heard you'll from New York
City, but these country folks are
making fools out of you'll folks.  I
heard about you folks.  You Aisha
daddy ain't you and you don't know
Jake?  Jake Greene!

BIG RAY
You mean that dumb son of a bitch
uses crack too?

JILL
He is playing you'll book smarts don't make you
smart.  Everybody knows Jake gets high, he used
to sell it until he messed up a package, I would
buy from him.  He got Aisha here and a white girl
in Lake Wales, they say he makes his rounds.

BIG RAY
What do you mean, by make his rounds.

JILL
You'll from New York City and don't know.  Just
follow him when he leaves the crack spot.

(MORE)



58.

JILL (CONT'D)
They should be there I just left about a half hour
ago, I just left there and they was there, they say
Sharon gets picked up by Marlon and Jake heads
to Lake Wales to see his white girl.  I do not know
where she lives.

BIG RAY
Get in the car girl, what is your
name.

JILL
My name Jill!

INT. IN THE CAR - MOMENTS LATER

They drive to the crack spot Jill hides in the car and they
take her around the corner down the block.

JILL
The best time to catch them her is on Friday night,
especially every other week, they might not be
there together next week but jake will sure be
there the week after.  I hate Jake he made me
suck a dog's dick for a rock one time, he is evil
and uses people.  Now you know where they be
but they have guns in there, you have to careful,
they are protected by the man and everything,
you can't just run up in there like hillbillies.

BIG RAY
Here is your money girl, but you
need to find help.

JILL
That's $100, no I said $50 thank
you.  Help your child Red Bone.

SHOTGUN
Thank you again.

Jill gets out of the car and they start talking about what
to do.

BIG RAY
Shotgun this is worst than I thought.

SHOTGUN
When it was Sharon it was in our
time.

BIG RAY
Damn man this is going to break
Aisha's heart.



59.

SHOTGUN
What are we going to do Big Ray.

BIG RAY
Let's head back and get Sister and
tell her we could not find her and
find out what else she knows.  On
the way to your house sister told me
about an investigation she put the
family under.  And my son Rayvon,
thinks he is involved with some
government shit.

SHOTGUN
What do you mean.

BIG RAY
We might be under observation right
this moment and no telling by who. 
We have to watch what we  say and do
from here on and we cannot get
impulsive.

They head back to Aisha's house to pick up Sister Peace to
take her home and clarify their understanding of what she
was saying.

EXT. IN FRONT OF AISHA'S HOUSE - MOMENTS LATER

They pop the horn yell sister.

SISTER PEACE
You find that girl

BIG RAY
No, we could not find her.

SHOTGUN
She will come home tonight, she always
do.

BIG RAY
Come on and get in your car and go
home, Shotgun take my car and follow
us and I will take you back before I
go home.

INT. IN THE CAR - CONTINUOUS

Shotgun get Big Ray's car and Sister Peace get in the front
passenger seat.

SISTER PEACE
I told my husband I will be in late
I was waiting for you'll to get back.
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BIG RAY
Sister you have to stop talking so
damn much, I am not talking about
letting your husband know you be in
late but all these things you told
me about the investigations and shit,
we have to talk in private just me
you and Shotgun tomorrow, there is
more going on than you know trust
me, stop the gossip I mean it.

SISTER PEACE
I have the keys to a conference room
at the church, I use for a women's
group we can meet there tomorrow,
what time.  My group start at 2 pm

BIG RAY
9 am, before anyone starts to arrive, we need
about one half an hour to a hour I guess, I just
want you to explain this shit to Shotgun, so we
will all be on the same page.

They arrive at Sister Peace home and they leave in Big Ray's
car to Shotguns.

BIG RAY (CONT'D)
Shotgun we have to keep the women in the dark,
we might need Rayvon, he told me some deep
shit.  We meet with Sister at 9 pm at the church,
then we have to meet with Rayvon, then  we will
know where to go with this.

EXT. IN THE CHURCH CONFERENCE ROOM - MORNING

They met with Sister Peace for about 45 minutes and they
leave the church conference room, as the audience sees them
talking and the clock moving from 9:00 am until about 9:43
am then they leave back you Big Ray's house.

INT. IN THE FRONT OF BIG RAY'S HOUSE - CONTINUOUS

They get out of the car and walk into the house and Rayvon
was waiting for them in the living room.

RAYVON
The Superwoman is gone we can talk,
she left to work.

BIG RAY
How does she do it, she works damn
near full time goes to school full
time, gets excellent grades and has
time for your drunk ass.
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RAYVON
I do not understand this shit daddy. 
What's up uncle?

SHOTGUN
Rayvon!

BIG RAY
OK, lets talk about our situations at hand.  Then
we have to make a plan and we do not have time
on our side.  I already filled in Shotgun, you do
not have to relive that mess again, but now we
have to fill you in on some shit.  Rayvon in a
nutshell, your aunty Sister put the family under
background checks and surveillance, you cousin
Sharon is a crack prostitute for that West Indian
bastard Marlon and did you know Jake is a crack
head and has him a bitch on the side?  This town
must think we are a bunch of damn fools.

SHOTGUN
Not for long!

RAYVON
If there is anything I learned in
the Army is how to be deceptive, we
cannot start being smart we have to
continue to play dumb and than use
the element of surprise to our
advantage.

BIG RAY
He is right Shotgun, but the only
missing link is who in the hell is
Maria?

SHOTGUN
We have to find out that, if nothing
else.

RAYVON
We have but one choice and that is
to approach her.

BIG RAY
Either she is a damn fool or the
inside person, if Rayvon is engaged
in anything.  Aisha said she is smart
and has game, that may well count
out the fool, therefore she has to
have a motive to be fucking with
this drunk ass fool.
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RAYVON
That is what is my concern, what
does she see in me?

BIG RAY
OK, I know what we have to do, we
will approach her when she gets home
this evening, this is how we will do
this.

Big Ray explains to them how they will approach her after
work that evening.

INT. AT MARIA'S JOB AT THE HOSPITAL - AFTERNOON

Secret Agent Parks and Special Agent Garret walks up to Maria
and says.

SERCET AGENT PARKS
How is our old friend Maria?

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
How is our old friend Maria?

MARIA
I go to lunch in about 15 minutes
meet me in the parking lot.

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
No!  Go to Burger King and and a guy
will be handing our surveys, he will
hand you a questionnaire under the
survey go into you car eat  and answer
the questions and read the
instructions and we will be on the
same page.  Just hand it back to the
man you got it from before to come
back to work.

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET (CONT'D)
Good meeting you again

(yelled))

INT. WALKING OUT OF THE BURGER KING FAST FOOD RESTAURANT -
AFTERNOON

She walks by the survey man and get a survey and under it is
paperwork for her to fill out.  She gets in her car and pulls
out a clipboard and answers the questions and notice in the
instructions Rayvon and the whole family is under an
investigation initiated by Sister Peace and the CIA is
handling it for national security purposes.
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MARIA
God Damn!  This was not a part of
the deal!

She gets out of the car throws her garbage away and hands
the survey back with the paperwork concealed underneath it 
and drives back to work.

MARIA (CONT'D)
My God poor Rayvon

INT. IN THE MAIN HOUSE IN AVON PARK FLORIDA - EVENING

Big Ray, Rayvon and Shot Gun sits in the living room waiting for Maria to come
home to approach her they figured that she is either stupid or in on something and
she is not stupid so she must know something and their strategy is to be as vague
as possible to try to trick her into telling them something they do not know, they
plan to pull a bluff.

Maria pulls up turns off the music, locks the car doors and
walks into the house and immediately noticed them sitting
there.

MARIA
Hi!

Before she can complete the sentence Big Ray talks.

BIG RAY
We know everything Maria, there is
no sense in you pretending anymore,
we know everything about

MARIA
Oh shit!

RAYVON
Aunt Peace was right, she put you
under investigation.

MARIA
What?

RAYVON
My aunt put the family under
investigation and we know everything
about you.

MARIA
What you know about me Rayvon?  In
fact what do you know about yourself? 
Are you a drunk Rayvon?
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BIG RAY
I sorry Maria, we did not mean
anything, but what do you see in
Rayvon?

MARIA
It was not supposed to happen like
this, this was not supposed to happen.

BIG RAY
What was not supposed to happen girl,
the marriage are you pregnant?

MARIA
What are you all a bunch of Country ass New
Yorkers?  Wake the hell up!  Look I am going to
open your eyes, because this has gone too far.

BIG RAY
What are you talking about Maria?

MARIA
I am an agent undercover.  Don't say
nothing just listen, because you
need to know what is going on and
who you are fucking with, just listen.

MARIA (CONT'D)
Rayvon I really care about you, but
I am an undercover agent and you
Rayvon is a very gifted young man
and because of this the government
uses you as a  intelligence courier. 
They control half of your mind so to
speak and they use you to calculate
and manipulate information.

RAYVON
I don't believe this shit!

MARIA
You better!

RAYVON
That was a figure of speech, I smelled
a fish I just did not know what.

MARIA
No more interruptions, just listen
to me because time is not on our
side.

RAYVON

Our side?
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MARIA
Our side Rayvon, are you stupid, I
just gave up my cover, but I know
how to keep us alive.  Why I gave up
my cover?  I am expendable as of
today, this is business!

MARIA (CONT'D)
OK!  Now listen carefully.  I am an undercover
observer and my job is observe you Rayvon. 
Those dreams you be having, they are not as
fictitious as you may think.  First of all I know
you'll do not know shit because I was contacted
today and was told about your aunt's investigation,
whose firm is on a feed by the CIA and Secret
Service.

BIG RAY
Feed?  What is a feed?

MARIA
The Agency is feeding information to the Advance
Surveillance Investigations, INC a CIA civilian
operations.  Everything that will come to you'll
will come from the government and not the people
you hired.  And that is how I know you know
nothing yet, because the operation goes into full
effect tomorrow.

BIG RAY
Operation?  What operation?

MARIA
Whatever aunt Peace paid for you are
going to get it, but it will be done
by the agency, they say Rayvon is
the best at what he does, which is
to manipulate information, develop
it and inform and I know this is
something real big.

RAYVON
(Yelled)

Those bastards, those fucking
bastards, they mind fucked me.

BIG RAY
Damn that what do you know man.

RAYVON
I have these repeated dreams about stem cells
and the fountain of youth, where mankind will live
150, 200 even perhaps 300 years, because of

(MORE)
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RAYVON (CONT'D)
the secret to the DNA, but it is just a dream

MARIA
No Rayvon is is not just a dream, that is your
mission it is the fountain of youth.  Now you know
Rayvon, now you know?  All of that drinking was
to keep you in the dark, when you go on covert
operations you think you had a black out and you
drink so much you really do not know.  Our lives
depend on you staying sober.

They continue to talk for about 3 more hours and you see the
clock go from 6:00 pm to 9:00 pm.

BIG RAY
OK: Rayvon is the key to get us out
of this mess, but we have other issues
to address.  How do we deal with
Marlon and Jake?

RAYVON
If Maria is on target I am an
untouchable, that is why I got away
with that shit in Germany and rid
the scum that rape me and set me up.

MARIA
Rayvon I didn't know!

RAYVON
We will discuss it later.  Daddy, Uncle, let me fry
this fish, I know everything I need to know now
and they fucked with the wrong family.  What was
said here stays in this circle and don't you dear
tell aunt Peace, she can't keep a secret and her
Aisha and aunt Momma talks and gossips about
everything and for this to go down they can never
know.

MARIA
You can't keep me out of the loop
Rayvon.

RAYVON
For this to work we need normalcy.

BIG RAY
I will take you home Shotgun

RAYVON
Uncle be cool and let me fry this
fish.
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SHOTGUN
That is my daughter Rayvon, if you
cannot I will.

RAYVON
No you cannot and I can and that you
have to understand this is no
sacrifice, back down and let me do
what I was trained to do for the
right reason this time.

BIG RAY
It is settled, let's go Shotgun.

INT. IN THE FRONT OF SHOTGUNS HOUSE - NIGHT

BIG RAY
I want your word Shotgun, promise
me!

SHOTGUN
You have my word.

INT. INSIDE THE LOVE MINISTRIES CHURCH - SUNDAY-MORNING

Rev.  Dr. Love gives a sermon about how everybody has demons,
the whole family is at the service to include Sharon, but
Jake and Marlon were not there and are not a part of the
family.  They are all seated in the same section, as the
master plan is about to unfold.

REV. DR. LOVE

My brothers and sisters, to the sick and the healed,
know that we cannot just save the saved, but we
have to save the sinners also.  We were all pure
at some point in life be it as an embryo at
conception.  Let us not get scientific, but let us
talk about the inner being of every man woman
and child.  Everybody has a demon; everybody
has a secret or something they did that they are
not proud of or was done to them. I am here to
tell you that good people can do bad things
because bad things were done to them and not
because they are bad people.
A person may have been given up as a child at
birth because their momma was not ready to raise
them and because of that feel unwanted.  A person
can have death in the family and want to play
momma themselves and as a result become
codependent and subjected to be misused and
abused by men.

(MORE)



68.

REV. DR. LOVE (CONT'D)
A person can be molested as a child and lose all
of their self esteem and sell their body for a high
to forget the pain, but only hurt themselves further. 
A person can be raped and feel so ashamed that
they stay intoxicated to numb the hurt.  Can
anybody identify with what I am saying, I know
this because somebody cannot keep a secret,
but your secrets are your sickness.  Praise the
Lord!  Everybody has a demon and brothers I am
here to tell you that the truth will set you free!

Rev.  Dr. Love calls on people to confess and receive the
holy spirit in the name of Jesus Christ.

Rayvon jumps up and starts praising the Lord, like if he
received the holy ghost, jumping up and down acting crazy

RAYVON
(yelled)

Thank you Jesus, Thank you Jesus.

Then he start talking in tongues making no sense whatsoever,
but the congregation got excited and they started praising
the Lord.  Then the music started with Aisha at the piano.

INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - CONTINUOUS

Watching the outdoors of the church and looking through the tainted glass they
see Rayvon via satellite and can hear everything as if they had eavesdropping
device  inside the church they watch and listen.  You see a high technology
conference room with a bunch of flat screens and computers connected to a
satellite as they see and hear everything.

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
I do not believe this shit.

SERCET AGENT PARKS
This shit cannot be, this fucking
crazy mother fucking killer found
God?

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
I thought the fucking guy was God.

Aisha goes crazy on the keyboards playing the hell out of
the piano.

AISHA
Rayvon found the Lord, thank you
Jesus!
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EXT. OUTSIDE THE LOVE MINISTRIES CHURCH - LATER ONE

Everybody leaves the church it is a big church of about 200
or 300 people, that can be decided by the director and the
movie budget for extras.  Aisha cries on Sister Peace
Shoulders.

The scripture below is shown on the screen to end Act 2

ACTS ALL ACTS

Ac 9:3 As he neared Damascus on his journey, suddenly a light
from heaven flashed around him.

Ac 9:4 He fell to the ground and heard a voice say to him,
"Saul, Saul, why do you persecute me?"

Ac 9:5 "Who are you, Lord?" Saul asked. "I am Jesus, whom
you are persecuting," he replied.

Ac 9:6 "Now get up and go into the city, and you will be
told what you must do."

Note
End of Act 2
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INT. AISHA IN BED IN HER BEDROOM - MONDAY-MORNING

Aisha wakes up abruptly as if she had a bad dream, effect by
the director is to momentarily make the audience think Rayvon
was a dream but is was not as they will see as they being
Sister Peace and Aisha goes through their routine on Monday
Morning.

SISTER PEACE
Aisha I frightened you?

AISHA
Aunty I had the strangest dream.

SISTER PEACE
Nothing is more strange than what
happened yesterday.  Your brother
done found the Lord!  Rayvon is saved!

Making a confused statement Aisha says.

AISHA
Rayvon?

SISTER PEACE
Get up girl, what is wrong with you.

AISHA
Nothing I am alright.

SISTER PEACE
You got 15 minutes.

Aisha goes towards bathroom to get ready to exercise, then
you see them running.  Then you see the satellite and you
see the situation room at the CIA headquarters and you see a
screen with a bunch of screens and everyone who is under
investigation with writing on the bottom right corner it is
written "Last Seen," and on the top right it say current
status and everybody is in their home, Aisha and Sister Peace
are running.  You see every bodies homes as they are under
surveillance.  You see a clock and it swings to 5:32 am.

INT. IN THE MAIN HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM - MORNING

You see Big Ray and Rayvon sitting in the living room, while
Maria is leaving to work, Maria speaks as she walks out.

MARIA
So what is next Rayvon

Note
Act 3 The Truth will set you free 
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RAYVON
I think I will take that offer at
the Correctional Institution and
change uniforms, I think I will make
a good C.O.

MARIA
Just remember to put God first.

RAYVON
Have a safe trip to work, we can
talk later.

Rayvon turns his attention to Big Ray and looks at his ring
that represents Freemasonry, this is the first time the
audience actually sees the G on his ring being Big Ray.  Big
Ray twists the ring back and forth with his right hand,
wearing the ring on his left hand.

RAYVON (CONT'D)
Big Ray do you understand the
significance of the Apostle Paul?

BIG RAY
He was the greatest apostle to ever
live.

RAYVON
That is not the significance, what
is important is you wear that on
your heart, to be a head and not a
hand, but they will be my ears and
eyes.

BIG RAY
The all seeing eyes are everywhere,
watching everything at all times

RAYVON
And for that reason the truth will
come to the light.

BIG RAY
In the Lord's time!

RAYVON
Exactly and by then all his enemies
will be under his feet.

BIG RAY
And may they all rest in peace.
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EXT. ALL OVER TOWN AND EVERY CORNER AND ON THE STREETS -
LATER

The Freemasons who go by the name of "the Proud of Avon,"
deploy the men of their lodge to watch everything going on
in that town different locations are shown at different times
of the day and you see a man twist his G ring with his right
hand on his left finger, but you do not see his face, just
his hand and finger with the Masonic ring.

Jill On the street corner:

Marlon Picking Sharon up at Shotgun's house

Jake and Sharon entering into the crack spot:

Sharon entering front of the old man's house:

Jake coming out of Aisha's apartment with $50:

Jake and Sharon leaving the Crack spot:

Jake going to the white woman's house in Lake Wales:

Marlon picking up Sharon at the crack house:

EXT. OUTSIDE THE LOVE MINISTRIES CHURCH - AFTERNOON

The local police came to the church and spoke to Sharon,
Momma and Shotgun and told them about Marlon.

LOCAL POLICE
Mr. and Mrs. Johnson and Sharon
Johnson we are sorry to inform you
that there has been a murder in the
driveway of your home.

Surprised Sharon replies:

SHARON
Marlon is dead?

MOMMA
The Lord works in mysteries ways,
that man was evil as sure as there
is evil and he got what was coming
to him.  He was not there when we
left to church and we all were in
church praising the Lord.  We do not
know anything officers.

LOCAL POLICE
We believe you, we just wanted to inform you
that your residence is an investigation scene and

(MORE)
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LOCAL POLICE (CONT'D)
we did not want you all to be shocked by the
graphic scene there is blood everywhere the car
will be moved as soon as the area is checked
out.

SHARON
Poor Marlon, poor Marlon, Lord knows
I did not want him to die.

MOMMA
He was an evil man, do you think he
would have let you go?

SHARON
You sound happy that he is dead.

MOMMA
No I am saddened maybe the Lord could
have touched him also, but the Lord
works in mysterious ways Sharon and
now I do not have to worry about you
being hurt for choosing a new life
style.  You have to let go Sharon,
don't be the slave that mourns over
the death of her slave master.

SHARON
I am tired of hating Momma.

MOMMA
I did not say hate I said let go and
move on, everything happens for a
reason in the Lord's time.

SHARON
Yes Momma and thank you sir, the
scene would have shocked me but now
I am prepared, thank you.

EXT. AT THE FRONT OF BIG RAY'S HOUSE - AFTERNOON

Rayvon goes to the mail box and gets about 15 pieces of mail.

THE MAILMAN
Today must be your lucky day.

RAYVON
Ask and it will be given to you;
seek and you will find; knock and
the door will be opened to you.
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THE MAILMAN
I am not a religious man but I am
certainly glad you put down that
damn bottle, because we all have a
purpose in life and it is not to be
the town's drunk.

He takes his right hand and twists the G ring on his left
finger and then says.

THE MAILMAN (CONT'D)
I hope you find what you are looking
for.

RAYVON
Then you will know the truth, and
the truth will set you free.

THE MAILMAN
I have to finish my run good luck
man.

RAYVON
Thanks!

EXT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - CONTINUOUS

As they watch and listen in on the conversation they start
to get suspicious but realize they were a little too late.

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
What the hell are they talking about?

SERCET AGENT PARKS
The real question is what in the
hell did he just hand him.  Something
just is not right

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
I agree, we have to watch this guy
closely.  I think he is making moves,
but what is he up to hum!

You see the situation room and all the technology at their
disposal, then you see Rayvon read his letters and shred
them to confetti and put the confetti in a big pot and burn
it in the yard.

SERCET AGENT PARKS
We underestimated this guy, now he
has a step on us.  It makes me wonder
if Agent X is playing both sides?
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SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
I do not know but like you said,
something just is not right.

INT. IN THE HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM - CONTINUOUS

In the living room are Big Ray, Shotgun and Rayvon.  Both
Big Ray and Shotgun twists their G rings and Rayvon says.

RAYVON
The truth has come to the light and
at best it is disturbing.

BIG RAY
Well son the truth is the truth what
happened, has happened you cannot
change the past.

RAYVON
The kingdom of heaven is like a man
who sowed good seed in his field.
But while everyone was sleeping, his
enemy came and sowed weeds among the
wheat, and went away.
When the wheat sprouted and formed
heads, then the weeds also appeared.

BIG RAY
The owner’s servants came to him and
said, ‘Sir, didn’t you sow good seed
in your field? Where then did the
weeds come from?

SHOTGUN
An enemy did this, he replied. “The
servants asked him, ‘Do you want us
to go and pull them up?

BIG RAY
No, he answered, because while you
are pulling the weeds, you may root
up the wheat with them.

RAYVON
Let both grow together until the
harvest. At that time I will tell
the harvesters: First collect the
weeds and tie them in bundles to be
burned; then gather the wheat and
bring it into my barn.  So it was
said?  The three agreed!
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INT. IN THE HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM AT SHOTGUNS HOMES -
SUNDAY-MORNING

Momma was cooking breakfast as the family was preparing to
go to Church as they do every Sunday it is the Johnson family
tradition to go to church, regardless to how they behave
during the week.  Sharon and her two little boys were getting
dressed and Sharon had a look about her that morning like
something happened to her and she was ready to turn her life
over to God.  Her inner and outer beauty shined that morning,
you would have never known she lived the life she lived so
many years, she looked like a different person and paid
attention to how she dressed that morning.

SHARON
Momma I am tired of living my life
the way I have been living it, why
the Lord touched Rayvon and didn't
save me?

MOMMA
Well sharon let me ask you one
question?  Do you Love the Lord your
God with all your heart and with all
your soul and with all your mind?

SHARON
Yes Momma!

MOMMA
One more question.  Do you
Love your neighbor as yourself?

SHARON
Yes Momma!

MOMMA
Now I will let you in on a secret.
All the Law and the Prophets hang on
these two commandments.  You are
already saved girl, you just have to
let the Lord take the drivers seat.

SHARON
But I want to receive the Holy Spirit
like Rayvon.

MOMMA
Today at the church when the time comes for the
calling, you get up and dance and rejoice in the
Lord, see you already have the spirit, now you
have to act like it.  See Sharon when you decide
to act like you received the Holy Spirit and you
know in your heart that you already have the Lord
in your heart, the change will come forth.
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SHARON
I will feel the Holy Spirit.

MOMMA
Listen to you, you are already full
of the spirit, but you have to let
the people know, just rejoice in the
Lord and watch how people begin to
treat you as long as you love yourself
from the moment on, it will be like
being born again.  You are not ashamed
of the Lord are you?

SHARON
No Momma!

MOMMA
Then today is the new beginning.

Then Momma touched her on the forehead and said.

MOMMA (CONT'D)
Lord please in the name of Jesus,
free my girl from the demons that
has taken control of her life.  We
love you Jesus!

Then she pushed Sharon by the forehead and she fell to the
floor and seemed to be having seizures crying out to the
Lord.

SHARON
Oh Lord please forgive me for my, oh
Lord please forgive me for the
shameful things I Have done against
you Lord.

Sharon truly found the Lord that morning and she realized
the act was for other people to see, but what was in heart
heart, mind and soul was what really mattered, but she knew
she had to put on an act at the church, because sometimes
what people think matters also.

INT. INSIDE THE LOVE MINISTRIES CHURCH - SUNDAY-MORNING

Rev.  Dr. Love gave a sermon about his ministry being married
to the Lord and why the Lord did not die on a cross contrary
to traditional Christian belief.

REV. DR. LOVE
I came across a Freemason the other day about
these three ruffians (Thugs) he did not understand
what I was saying, when I said they beat down a
man who had a plan to build the temple (Of God)

(MORE)
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REV. DR. LOVE (CONT'D)
and took it from him.  I was talking about the so-
called Christians, Muslims and Jews.  One claimed
he died so that they could live (Christians), another
said, God would not create such a person and
anyone who follows him should be put to death
(Muslims) and still another claimed he never
came (Jews).  The common factor they all denied
him and left him for dead.  This is a well kept
secret concerning the Journey of the Lord.

I stand before you all to let you
know we at the Love Ministries are
married to the Lord and is damn proud
of it.

I want to read something to you "A
woman is bound to her husband as
long as he lives. But if her husband
dies, she is free to marry anyone
she wishes, but he must belong to
the Lord."

Understand that had the Lord died,
we all would have been free to
remarry, but because the Lord did
not die on the cross or hanged on a
tree, we remain married to the Lord
and any relations we got into with
anyone claiming to be a substitute
to the lord has to be annulled, like
it never existed.

We are all married to our Lord and
savor Jesus Christ and there is no
shame in our game praise the Lord
and rejoice in him, the Lord is the
head of this household.

The whole church went to praising the Lord and everyone was amazed at how
Sharon had finally found the Lord, many family members went into tears.  There
was plenty of praising, rejoicing, singing and dancing, it was a very inspirational
moment.  Meanwhile on the other side of town.

EXT. BLACK SUNDAY ALL OVER TOWN AND EVERY CORNER AND ON THE
STREETS - CONTINUOUS

The street corner where crack is sold at the Thug Club:

Every Sunday around church hours the neighborhood crack dealers leadership
committee would meet in a building called the Thug nightclub, they were of different
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factions but they would meet to maintain the peace in the community.  The place
was heavily guarded with drug dealers hanging on the streets.  The setup was
there are 5 heads that sits around a table and they discuss things like the next
shipment and how it would be distributed.  There is one bartender and two men
at the door with guns.  They are all dressed in suits.

DRUG DEALER ONE
Let's get this meeting done with
fast I have a hot date, everything
seems to be going smooth.

DRUG DEALER TWO
I have no problems, we can just split
the package as normal.  Do any one
have a complaint about our current
arrangements.

DRUG DEALER FOUR
Come on man, we all get an equal
split at 20%, we get to hire who we
please it is all good, we have
multiple distribution, dependent on
no one man this is how it is supposed
to be.

DRUG DEALER THREE
Well it is about that time gentlemen.

DRUG DEALER FIVE
Nigger what are you talking about
Blood?

DRUG DEALER THREE
Satan time is up fool.

The two men at the door with guns, who worked for the
organizer drug dealer one heard what he said.

DRUG DEALER ONE
If you plan to walk out of here alive
you better explain yourself.

The doormen walk up to him with their guns out and said:

DOORMAN ONE
Just give us the word boss

DOORMAN TWO
What you say nigger?

DRUG DEALER THREE
I said in about 30 seconds Satan
time will be up.
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Drug dealer three than walks by the doormen and tells the
bartender to buzz my men in.  The bartender presses the door
button and four men his workers walk in.

DRUG DEALER THREE (CONT'D)
Satan time is up!

The two doormen using silencers and shoots the other four
drug dealers in the head they each got 3 shots to the head
and they all being the 4 workers, drug dealer three, the 2
doormen and the bartender got down on the floor and outside
three cars came driving through and in slow motion you see
the three cars do a drive by shooting everyone in sight being
all the drug dealers of the town.

DRUG DEALER THREE (CONT'D)
Let's finish the job.

They all pull out automatic revolvers and open the door and
kill all of the survivors, there were two on the ground crying
for help and three that was not hit trying to make a run for
it.  Like expert hit men they aimed and shot them dead. 
Then they made sure everyone was dead by shooting dead bodies
in the head.  Then a SUV came and picked them up.

Marlon waiting Picking Sharon up at Shotgun's house:  

Marlon was listening to loud music, in the car alone smoking
weed when a car with two people drove to the side of him. 
They greet Marlon to make sure he was the right person, they
pull out a shotgun and shoot him in the head.

The crack spot:

Two cars roll up to the side of the crack spot, that was
basically empty of customers but had a few watch out men

Two men drive up in a pickup truck and go to the back of the trucks bed and pull
out two fire bombs and fire them into the crack house and it goes up in flames,
they burned down the crack house made of wood and you see the guys inside
catch fire and those who try to run out are shot dead.

The dirty old man's house:

A woman knocks on the door.

She say Hi daddy you going to let me in and when he opens
the door she throws acid in his face, then goes into the
house and takes him out of his misery.  And she says never
take advantage of God's sick children.
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Jake leaving the white woman's house in Lake Wales: 

As Jake is walking out of the house Sunday Morning two men
are standing on the side of the building waiting for him.

FBI SPECIAL AGENT ONE
Jake Greene?

FBI SPECIAL AGENT TWO
Your are under arrest under the RICO
Statute.

The white woman says I am sorry Jake but it was either me or
you, I had turn you in I am sorry

JAKE
What did I do, what did I do, who
are you bitch.

WHITE WOMAN
I am sorry Jake but I had to tell
them everything.

JAKE
What the hell is going on I do not
know this crazy bitch.

WHITE WOMAN
Now I am a bitch, a crazy bitch, if
you did not know me why did you fuck
me?  Can I go now?

FBI SPECIAL AGENT ONE
That was the agreement, you give us
the kingpin behind your operations
and we turn our heads and let you go
on your merry way, we got our package.

JAKE
Kingpin, I smoke that shit ask my
friends, ask Sharon Johnson we smoke
together.

FBI SPECIAL AGENT TWO
She said he was good, if I was you I
would save it for the judge, read
him his rights.

The word got around quickly in town about all of the events that took place and
that Jake Greene was a kingpin on the down low in partnership with a white woman
who went into witness protection and was unidentified and that one of the factions
of the 5 factions that ran the town disappeared from the scene and there was no
trace of them.  They blamed Jake for the killings also, they claimed he knew what
was about to go down and tried to cover his tracks.
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EXT. AT THE FRONT OF BIG RAY'S HOUSE - MONDAY-MORNING

Aisha comes running to the main house crying with the
newspaper in her hands on the front over it said Jake Greene
the Mean Machine Busted with a picture of him

BIG RAY
I am sorry Aisha I heard about Jake
thank the Lord you did not get mixed
up with that mess.

AISHA
How could he do this to me?

RAYVON
Maybe now you will find someone right
for you, your are still young,
beautiful, educated and sister you
deserve better.

AISHA
Anyway I called in sick, I do not
feel very well at the moment, not
only was he selling drugs bumming
off of me, but he had a white girl
on the side, I was used.  Maybe Maria
is not so bad, sometimes your worst
enemy is yourself or the person you
least suspect.  I still have my
family.  I need some time alone, I
am going to go home and just relax
and reflect, this is shocking to me.

RAYVON
You sure you are alright Aisha?

AISHA
Yes, I was about to give up on him anyway.  But
it is crazy what happened yesterday with marlon
and the the gangs up the street.  They called it
the Black Sunday

RAYVON
Like a dude once told me about the
drug dealer, when they sign their
contract with Satan it is written in
fine print, I can take this back
from you at anytime.

AISHA
I was such a fool!
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RAYVON
No Aisha you just did not know and
you was just trying to be nice, do
not blame yourself for another
person's folly.

AISHA
I will see you later!

Aisha walks off to her home and Rayvon turns his attention
to Big Ray.

RAYVON
I have one more act of unfinished
business to tend to and everything
will be in place.

INT. SOMEWHERE IN LOS ANGELES, CA PLACE UNKNOWN - NIGHT

The white woman and the drug dealer number three and his
four workers, the bartender and two hit men  meet in a private
office.

WHITE WOMAN
Well gentlemen it was fine doing
business with you all and with this
kind of money you'll can make a life
for yourselves anywhere in the world. 
Hell it was small town in the middle
of nowhere, it is like we were ghost.

DRUG DEALER THREE
Yea this was one smooth operation,
nobody will ever tie it all together,
you are an ingenious white women.  I
always wondered what was your name,
but it is not important.  It was
good doing business with you also.

She hands each of them a briefcase with one million dollars
each.

WHITE WOMAN
There is a million dollars in each
briefcase you do not have to count
it.  Goodbye and good luck.

They all say goodbye and walk out of the office into rented
cars.

INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - AFTERNOON

Assistant Director Richards calls another closed door meeting with Secret Agent
Parks and Special Agent Garret concerning the new developments that occurred
on what became known as Black Sunday.
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ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
Something went down that was well
coordinated and probably has been
going on before this operation
started, but we cannot count out
Rayvon.  Advance Surveillance
Investigations, INC. will contact
Ms. Love and tell her the
investigation is called off due to a
Federal Government investigation
into the matter of Black Sunday,
because there are things that just
cannot be made public.

SERCET AGENT PARKS
What about Rayvon and Maria, I am
totally convinced he knows something,
maybe more than we think and should
be bought out of the dark.  We need
him but he has to know that he needs
us also.

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
I agree contact Maria to set up a
meet, make sure the meeting is on
Rayvon's terms.  The whole operation
has to be rethought out.

SPECIAL AGENT GARRET
What about Maria, what role will she
play now?

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR RICHARDS
That is to be determined based on
their relations.  Just setup the
meeting.

INT. SISTER PEACE HOME AT A COFFEE TABLE - AFTERNOON

Sister Peace and Momma drink coffee together on Saturdays
regularly and gossip.  The Agency knows this because they
have been watching them and felt this would be an opportune
time to contact the two to let them know the investigation
is being taken over by the Federal Government.  The phone
rings it is Sister Peace cell phone which she gave them as a
contact number.  Sister Peace answers the phone after the
third ring.  She recognizes the caller ID.

SISTER PEACE
Hello this is Sister Peace and Love.

ADVANCE SURVIELLENCE INVESTIGATIONS,
INC.

Satan's Time is Up
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SISTER PEACE
So now it is time to find out exactly
what is going on?

ADVANCE SURVIELLENCE INVESTIGATIONS,
INC.

Actually Ms. Love depending on how
you accept this information it could
be considered good and bad.  As you
know there as an incident in your
hometown called Black Sunday and the
fact of the matter, one of the people
you had under investigation got killed
and another was arrested under the
RICO Statute.

SISTER PEACE
You said RICO?  Isn't that the
Racketeering Influenced & Corrupt
Organizations Act.  Ain't that the
Mafia?

ADVANCE SURVIELLENCE INVESTIGATIONS,
INC.

It could be they do not know or they
are not telling us, but as you know
we had these people under
investigation and surveillance and
the government basically said we
cannot give you this information,
now hear me out.  Because of our
policy we will refund you double the
deposit of $25G, but our information
has been subpoenaed by the Federal
Government.  How and where would you
like to receive your money.

SISTER PEACE
Give me back a cashiers check; me
and Momma will come and  pick it up
as soon as possible.

ADVANCE SURVIELLENCE INVESTIGATIONS,
INC.

You can pick up up today.

SISTER PEACE
Hold on for a moment.

She turns her attention to Momma and says:
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SISTER PEACE (CONT'D)
Momma you feel like taking a ride to
orlando?  I will explain on the way.

MOMMA
Satan's time must be up!

SISTER PEACE
I will explain on the way, are you
ready to go?

MOMMA
I just have to use the bathroom first.

SISTER PEACE
Hello, we will be on our way in about
10 minutes and should be there before
3:00 O'clock or 3:30.

ADVANCE SURVIELLENCE INVESTIGATIONS,
INC.

Just go to the receptionist and tell
her your password and show her your
drivers license and your check will
be given to you.  I am really sorry
about the developing events.

They both hang up

INT. AT THE TAMPA VA HOSPITAL PSYCHIATRIC WARD - AFTERNOON

Maria and Rayvon was setup to meet at the hospital as Rayvon
had an appointment to meet with a psychiatrist, who handles
these type of cases for the Agency.

RECEPTIONIST
Rayvon Johnson you can see the doctor
now.

DOCTOR JOHN LAWSON
Hi Mr. Johnson, I am Dr. Lawson, and
this must be your wife.  Come into
my office.

They go into the office and it is just the three of them.

DOCTOR JOHN LAWSON (CONT'D)
This meeting will be monitored is that alright with
you.  First of all your PTSD application has been
approved and you will be getting 100% Service
Connected Disability, for now I want you in my
office once a month that will eventually be reduced
to once every three months, is that OK with you.



87.

RAYVON
No problem!  Before I continue I
have one request, Maria she is Puerto
Rican, yet she is blacker than I am,
the family that raised her was light
and mistreated her.  Why would they
adopt her if they had a problem with
her color.  We want to know the
connection.  Who are Maria's real
parents, she deserves to know this.

DOCTOR JOHN LAWSON
Just a moment.

He gets on the phone and gets the information.

DOCTOR JOHN LAWSON (CONT'D)
The complete report will come to you
in certified mail, but the bottom
line is Maria's mother is in fact
Puerto Rican, she was 13 years old
when she got pregnant by a black
male who was 15 years old.  Gloria
the woman who raised her is her
biological aunt on her mother's side,
her mother; well that part you have
to find out in the report.  I wish
you all the luck Maria, it is not
all bad.

RAYVON
Well now you will find out just who you are Maria. 
One more thing, Maria as of this day works for
me, I will report to you and she will report to me, I
do not need a wife observer who works for the
government.  Yes I know more than you think.  I
know my dreams are not just fantasies.

DOCTOR JOHN LAWSON
Now we need to know one thing, because
there is a full investigation going
down concerning Black Sunday, was it
you?

RAYVON
Wrong question!  Was it you?

FADE OUT:

Note
End of Act 3 



88.


	1	EXT. AT THE FRONT OF THE HOUSE ON THE PORCH ON A ROCKING CHAIR - MORNING
	1	EXT. AT THE FRONT OF THE HOUSE ON THE PORCH ON A ROCKING CHAIR - MORNING
	2	INT. INSIDE THE CHURCH IN NEW YORK AT HER MOTHER'S FUNERAL - AFTERNOON
	2	INT. INSIDE THE CHURCH IN NEW YORK AT HER MOTHER'S FUNERAL - AFTERNOON
	3	INT. INSIDE THE CHURCH IN NEW YORK AT HER MOTHER'S FUNERAL - AFTERNOON
	3	INT. INSIDE THE CHURCH IN NEW YORK AT HER MOTHER'S FUNERAL - AFTERNOON
	4	INT. ON THE AMTRAK TRAIN HEADED TO FLORIDA - NIGHT
	5	EXT. AT THE TRAIN STATION IN A SEBRING, FLORIDA - AFTERNOON
	6	INT. AISHA IN BED IN HER BEDROOM - MORNING -
	7	INT. IN AN APARTMENT IN QUEENS, NEW YORK - EVENING
	8	INT. AISHA IN BED IN HER BEDROOM - NIGHT
	9	INT. AT THE THUG NIGHTCLUB - NIGHT
	10	INT. IN THE MAIN HOUSE IN AVON PARK FLORIDA - EVENING
	11	INT. CAR ON THE WAY TO AIRPORT - AFTERNOON
	12	INT. AT SISTER PEACE HOUSE THEY HAVE A FAMILY DINNER THE NIGHT BEFORE THE FUNERAL - EVENING
	12	INT. AT SISTER PEACE HOUSE THEY HAVE A FAMILY DINNER THE NIGHT BEFORE THE FUNERAL - EVENING
	13	EXT. A THE GRAVE YARD - AFTERNOON
	14	INT. AT THE COLLEGE GRADUATION - AFTERNOON - TWO YEARS LATER
	15	INT. AT SHOTGUNS NEW RESIDENCE JUST BUILT IN AVON PARK, FLORIDA - AFTERNOON
	15	INT. AT SHOTGUNS NEW RESIDENCE JUST BUILT IN AVON PARK, FLORIDA - AFTERNOON
	16	EXT. IN THE CAR OUTSIDE THE MAIN HOUSE - EVENING
	17	INT. INSIDE THE MAIN HOUSE OF BIG RAY - EVENING
	18	EXT. IN THE DRIVE WAY BY THE HOUSE - LATER
	19	INT. IN THE HOUSE - EVENING
	20	EXT. IN FRONT OF THE HOUSE ON THE PORCH.
	21	INT. THEY WALK INTO THE HOUSE TOGETHER AS EVERYONE IS SEATING DOWN NOW. - EVENING
	21	INT. THEY WALK INTO THE HOUSE TOGETHER AS EVERYONE IS SEATING DOWN NOW. - EVENING
	22	INT. IN HER CAR PASSING BY THE STOREFRONT HANGOUT SPOT - EVENING
	22	INT. IN HER CAR PASSING BY THE STOREFRONT HANGOUT SPOT - EVENING
	23	INT. IN THE LIVING ROOM IN THE MAIN HOUSE - EVENING
	24	EXT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY ROUTINE - MORNING
	24	EXT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY ROUTINE - MORNING
	25	INT. IN THE LIVING ROOM AT SHARON'S HOME WITH PARENTS - EVENING
	25	INT. IN THE LIVING ROOM AT SHARON'S HOME WITH PARENTS - EVENING
	26	EXT. AT THE FRONT OF THE HOUSE OF THE OLD MAN - EVENING
	27	INT. INSIDE OLD MAN'S HOUSE - NIGHT
	28	EXT. AROUND THE CORNER FROM THE TRICK'S HOUSE - MOMENTS LATER
	28	EXT. AROUND THE CORNER FROM THE TRICK'S HOUSE - MOMENTS LATER
	29	INT. AT AISHA'S HOME - CONTINUOUS
	30	INT. AT THE CRACK SPOT - NIGHT
	31	EXT. AT THE CRACK SPOT - CONTINUOUS
	32	INT. AT THE CRACK SPOT - CONTINUOUS
	33	EXT. AT THE CRACK SPOT - LATER
	34	EXT. ABOUT 30 MILES OUT OF TOWN IN CITY CALLED LAKE WALES - LATER
	34	EXT. ABOUT 30 MILES OUT OF TOWN IN CITY CALLED LAKE WALES - LATER
	35	INT. SISTER PEACE HOME AT A COFFEE TABLE - SATURDAY AFTERNOON-
	35	INT. SISTER PEACE HOME AT A COFFEE TABLE - SATURDAY AFTERNOON-
	36	INT. AT THE PRIVATE INVESTIGATION OFFICE IN ORLANDO, FLORIDA - AFTERNOON - ONE WEEK LATER
	36	INT. AT THE PRIVATE INVESTIGATION OFFICE IN ORLANDO, FLORIDA - AFTERNOON - ONE WEEK LATER
	37	INT. IN THE CAR ON THE WAY BACK HOME - EVENING
	38	INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - NIGHT
	39	EXT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY ROUTINE - MORNING
	39	EXT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY ROUTINE - MORNING
	40	EXT. IN THE HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM - MORNING
	41	EXT. IN FRONT OF AISHA'S HOUSE - NIGHT
	42	INT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY ROUTINE - MORNING
	42	INT. AISHA AND SISTER PEACE RUNNING IN THE MORNING AS DAILY ROUTINE - MORNING
	43	INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - DAY
	44	INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - LATER
	45	EXT. AT THE FRONT OF BIG RAY'S HOUSE - NIGHT
	46	INT. INSIDE THE MAIN HOUSE OF BIG RAY - NIGHT
	47	EXT. IN FRONT OF SISTER PEACE CAR - NIGHT
	48	INT. INSIDE OF SISTER PEACE CAR. - NIGHT
	49	EXT. IN FRONT OF SHOTGUN'S HOME - LATER
	50	INT. INSIDE OF SHOTGUN'S HOME - NIGHT
	51	EXT. IN FRONT ON BIG RAY'S HOUSE - CONTINUOUS
	52	INT. AT AISHA'S HOME - CONTINUOUS
	53	EXT. IN FRONT ON BIG RAY'S HOUSE - CONTINUOUS
	54	EXT. IN THE STREETS - MOMENTS LATER
	55	INT. IN THE CAR - MOMENTS LATER
	56	EXT. IN FRONT OF AISHA'S HOUSE - MOMENTS LATER
	57	INT. IN THE CAR - CONTINUOUS
	58	EXT. IN THE CHURCH CONFERENCE ROOM - MORNING
	59	INT. IN THE FRONT OF BIG RAY'S HOUSE - CONTINUOUS
	60	INT. AT MARIA'S JOB AT THE HOSPITAL - AFTERNOON
	61	INT. WALKING OUT OF THE BURGER KING FAST FOOD RESTAURANT - AFTERNOON
	61	INT. WALKING OUT OF THE BURGER KING FAST FOOD RESTAURANT - AFTERNOON
	62	INT. IN THE MAIN HOUSE IN AVON PARK FLORIDA - EVENING
	63	INT. IN THE FRONT OF SHOTGUNS HOUSE - NIGHT
	64	INT. INSIDE THE LOVE MINISTRIES CHURCH - SUNDAY-MORNING
	65	INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - CONTINUOUS
	EXT. OUTSIDE THE LOVE MINISTRIES CHURCH - LATER ONE
	66	INT. AISHA IN BED IN HER BEDROOM - MONDAY-MORNING
	67	INT. IN THE MAIN HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM - MORNING
	68	EXT. ALL OVER TOWN AND EVERY CORNER AND ON THE STREETS - LATER
	68	EXT. ALL OVER TOWN AND EVERY CORNER AND ON THE STREETS - LATER
	69	EXT. OUTSIDE THE LOVE MINISTRIES CHURCH - AFTERNOON
	70	EXT. AT THE FRONT OF BIG RAY'S HOUSE - AFTERNOON
	71	EXT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - CONTINUOUS
	72	INT. IN THE HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM - CONTINUOUS
	73	INT. IN THE HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM AT SHOTGUNS HOMES - SUNDAY-MORNING
	73	INT. IN THE HOUSE IN THE LIVING ROOM AT SHOTGUNS HOMES - SUNDAY-MORNING
	74	INT. INSIDE THE LOVE MINISTRIES CHURCH - SUNDAY-MORNING
	75	EXT. BLACK SUNDAY ALL OVER TOWN AND EVERY CORNER AND ON THE STREETS - CONTINUOUS
	75	EXT. BLACK SUNDAY ALL OVER TOWN AND EVERY CORNER AND ON THE STREETS - CONTINUOUS
	76	EXT. AT THE FRONT OF BIG RAY'S HOUSE - MONDAY-MORNING
	77	INT. SOMEWHERE IN LOS ANGELES, CA PLACE UNKNOWN - NIGHT
	78	INT. CIA HEADQUARTERS MCLEAN, VIRGINIA - AFTERNOON
	79	INT. SISTER PEACE HOME AT A COFFEE TABLE - AFTERNOON
	80	INT. AT THE TAMPA VA HOSPITAL PSYCHIATRIC WARD - AFTERNOON

